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Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi l l/resol utio n :  

Relating to reg ional publ ic health network defin itions, joint powers agreement review, 
annual plan, and receipt and use of moneys; and to provide an appropriation .  

M i n utes: Testimony attached. 

Vice Chairman Larson opens the hearing on SB 2030. 

Sheila Sandness,  Senior Fiscal Analyst for the Legislative Counci l ,  introd uces 
SB 2030 to the committee.  See attached testimony #1. 

Senator Anderson asks how many more regional health networks are anticipated as a 
result of th is bi l l .  

Ms. Sa ndness wasn't able to answer but suggested someone else m ight be able to. 

Kelly Nagel testifies that it wil l cover everywhere in the state. 

Sen. Larsen - asked for clarification about the funding. 

Ms. Sa ndness explained that the 3 mi l l ion she talked about in her testimony was what was 
included in the 2011/2013 biennium (grant funding for the local publ ic health un its). The 4 
mi l l ion is j ust for the networks , not the grants. 

Kel ly Nagel, public health l iaison for the North Dakota Department of Health , provided 
neutral testimony on SB 2030. See attached testimony #2. 
Testimony ends at 16:44 

Senator Axness- asked for an explanation on the 24% funding that comes from fees and 
other sources. What are those fees and who is paying them? 

Ms. N agel responded that a lot of the local public health units charge donations for 
services. Other sources might be other 3rd party reimbursements. 
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Sen.  Anderson stated that the original idea beh ind the pi lot project was to see that these 
operations cou ld be more efficient, both fiscal ly and in del ivering services. He wondered if 
that was now just being replaced with ongoing funding from the state . He asked Ms. Nagel 
to com ment. 

Ms. Nagel sa id the justification for the $4 mi l l ion is mostly for start-up funding to get the 
networks formed . Benefits include access to resources. 

Sen.  Larson - what is an epidemiologist? 

Ms.  Nagel said they are cal led field epidemiologists. They are d isease related experts i n  
the state that do  d isease survei l lance and investigations. 

Sen.  Larson asked for some examples of what resources they are pool ing . 

Ms.  Nagel  used the SE col laborative as an example. They have pooled financial resources 
to obtain a consultant to help them do accreditation review and performance improvement 
issues. They have pooled resources to staff an environmental health practitioner or 
contractor to do policy scans and develop model pol icies. They also pool their expertise i n  
electronic health records. 

Sen.  Larson asked her if the core activity she was d iscussing was going to be l ike the five 
areas of the REA. 

Ms. Nagel  said that was correct. 

Discussion: Electronic records. Currently public health does not have the capabil ity of 
being on the electronic health record system.  Records do  not fol low from jurisd iction to 
jurisd iction unless the information is put into the state registry, l ike the immunization 
registry. 
It is in state law that public health units provide services regardless of abi l ity to pay. Pub l ic 
health is not cl in ical health care. 

Ruth Bachmeier, Director at Fargo Cass Public Health , provided comments on the 
benefits of the reg ional publ ic health network in the southeast corner of NO. See 
attachment #3. (Testimony ends at 28:00) 

Ms. Bachmeier read testimony from Wanda Kratochvil, Administrator for Walsh County 
Hea lth District in Grafton . See attached testimony# 4. (Testimony ends at 31 :30) 

Sen .  Anderson wondered if there had been any effort on the part of the publ ic health un its 
to f ind an e lectronic public health system for everyone. 

Ms. Bachmeier repl ied that across the state they are probably uti l izing 4 or 5 d ifferent 
systems. It probably isn't so important they al l  have the same system but is more important 
that they can communicate with each other. 

No further q uestions. 
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Keith Johnson ,  administrator for Custer Health - Mandan, testified on behalf of Lisa C l ute, 
Executive Officer of First District Health Unit, who was not able to be present. See 
attachment #5. 
He a lso commended the committee for work on this bi l l  in  the interim committee. 

He pointed out that, in terms of funding, this wi l l probably result i n  more funds accruing 
from the state to the local health un its. They feel that is probably appropriate. 

He a lso ta lked about the software programs. He pointed out that the health units were 
specifical ly excluded last session from meaningful use incentives i n  the health i nformation 
exchange. They have to be part of it and wi l l  participate whether they are being paid for it 
or not. 

He answered questions from the committee. 

Sen. Anderson asked how this would help those in  the western part of the state that 
already have a col laborative publ ic health network since it seemed to h im th is was written 
to establish and fund new publ ic health units. 

Mr. Johnson repl ied that there are ample opportunities out west to cooperate such as 
provid ing environmental health services especially to the oil patch that cross boundaries. 
Another area is the school of nursing and interfacing with the reg ional educational 
association to market school health to the schools that want it. It wi l l  definitely benefit the 
east. 

Sherry Adams,  Executive Officer from Southwestern District Health U nit, gave input for the 
reg ional  health network from a multicounty d istrict health unit view. (Meter 43:00) She 
provided a packet of testimony and letters of support from health units that were not 
present. See attachment #6 . Testimony ends at 47:18 

Terry Traynor, Associations of Counties, testified in support and reported that their 
com m issioners are very supportive. 

Sen. Anderson asked if it would be his perception that probably no levies wou ld go down 
in any of the counties because additional money was put in .  

Mr. Traynor repl ied that the goal of this and some of the first ind ication is  that there are 
efficiencies gained . He would not expect to see an immed iate drop. 

There was no further testimony in favor or in opposition .  

The hearing closed but was re-opened for add itional information from Sheldon Wolf. 

Sheldon Wolf,  Health I nformation Technology Division ,  provides further information .  

He reported that they are working on the Health I nformation Network which wou ld connect 
electronic health record systems between al l the facil ities within the state. Systems need 
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to be able to speak a common language to be able to connect it. They have received an 
appropriation - cooperative agreement from the federal government of 5.3 m i l l ion dol lars -
that goes through 2014. 
They have Phase I done wh ich is a d irect system - a security mai l  process. 
They are working on Phase 2 wh ich is query based services. 

Discussion fol lowed on putting information into the immunization registries. It is not 
mandatory right now but a b i l l  is in the works on the House side. 

Mr. Wolf spoke about the Regional Extension Center which helps faci l ities look at 
electronic health systems. 

A citizen , who d id not state h is name, expressed h is opin ions and concerns about the cost. 

Senator Anderso n  and Sen. Lee commented on his concerns. 

The hearing on SB 2030 was closed . 
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Explan ation or reason for introduction of b i l l/resolution: 

M i n utes : 

C hairman Lee opened 58 2030 for committee d iscussion . 
She explained the background on the regional public health networks. 

Senator Anderson moves Do Pass. 

Senator Axness seconds. 

Senator Anderson explained that he was concerned this wou ld become an ongoing 
funding source for the publ ic health units. However, this funding is intended to be startup 
and by putting th is seed money in he looks forward to them saving enough to at least 
continue doing what they are currently doing and maybe add a l ittle more. 

Committee agrees that collaboration is an exciting thing. Without some incentive, they 
can't do it and this wi l l  provide that incentive. 

Rol l cal l  vote 5-0-0. Carrier is Sen. J. Lee. 

This bi l l  was rereferred to Appropriations. 



Date J/;J:;fi_-1 
Roll Call Vdte #: 1 

201 3 SENATE STAN D I N G  COM MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 
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Senate Human Services Com m ittee 

D C heck here for Conference Committee 

Legis lat ive Council  Amendment Number 

Action Taken: �Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

�erefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 
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Senators Yeo/ 

Chari m a n  J udy Lee v 
Vice C h a i rman Oley Larsen v 
Senator Dick Dever v 
Senator H oward Anderson, Jr. v 

Seconded By �. Ax.n i.SS 

N o  Senator Yes ..... N o  
Senator Tyler Axness v 

Total  (Yes) --=6=-------- No -�D�-----------
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITIEE 
SB 2030: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) recommends DO PASS 

and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2030 was rereferred to the Appropriations 
Committee. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to reg ional public health network definitions 

Minutes: See attached testimony 

Chairman Holmberg cal led the committee to order on Thursday, January 31, 2013 at 8:30 
am in regards to SB 2030. Rol l  cal l  was taken.  All committee members were present except 
Senator Robinson .  Laney Herauf from OMB and Sheila M .  Sandness from Legislative 
Council were present. 

Senator Judy Lee, District 13: (1.36) I am here to introduce SB 2030.which is the result 
of the work of the interim committee on health services. It d iscusses the importance of 
permitting joint powers agreements between and among public health un its so that they 
can more effectively and efficiently del iver services at a time when they are especially 
chal lenged because of the growth in the west but everywhere. Two sessions ago we 
enabled them as a voluntary p i lot project to do this and you wil l  hear from the lead person 
on that. There wil l  be others that can tel l  you the importance here. Public health is not 
ind ividual cl in ical health . This is environmental health , vaccines and immunizations, things 
that affect the general publ ic. Environmental health , we'll te l l  you a l ittle more about that, 
I nspection of food faci l ities. We know there are mushrooming needs for those kinds of 
things. It was very successful .  A lot of good response from that p i lot project. The good 
news is ,  after some of the successes were seen there some other public health units who 
were a l ittle bit apprehensive at the beg inn ing about losing their autonomy real ized that 
wasn't what this was about. The leg is lation is based on the REA's for schools, 
Representative Sanford helped with this, it is very much optional ,  it also permits the multi 
county d istricts to work with other d istricts. But I encourage you to move this forward . Two 
years ago it was left out of the budget and I d idn't know what wasn't in the budget so we 
ended putting it back for study and review and the recommendation of the health services 
committee is that we enable these public health un its to continue their work. (4.46) 

Chairman Holmberg This bi l l  wil l  be assigned to the subcommittee of the Department of 
Health consisting of Senator Ki lzer, Senator Grindberg and Senator Mathern . 
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Robin lszler, Administrator at Central Valley Health District testified in favor of SB 2030 
and provided Testimony attached # 1. She stated she would testify about the history and 
h igh l ights of the SE Central Regional PH network pi lot that was funded in  2009 and her 
testimony shares about the importance of the Computer based time record ing 
system(TIMS) for standardized employee time reporting and the computerized bi l l ing 
system wh ich her d istrict and the partners share . The partners are City County Health 
District-Val ley City, Wells County District Health Un it - Fessenden and LaMoure County 
District Health Un it-LaMoure. She is asking for the support of this committee for SB 2030. 
( 11.08) 

Vice Chairman Bowman: Do you see this budget growing every bienn ium? Is this going 
to be an ongoing appropriation and is i t  going to grow very fast. You talk about saving some 
money with technology and all l;ve seen is our technology has cost us a tremendous 
amount of money but If it helps al l  of the health un its and provides better service and 
savings to the people I am for that. 

Robin lszler: commented she wasn't sure if they would need to ask for more funds or just 
be able to continue on with the services they provide. ( 13 .02) 

Senator Kilzer asked for a breakdown of the $4M to the subcommittee. He was asked if 
he meant the health d istricts and he told her no, he is more interested in the services. 

Robin lszler: Every public health department has needs so I don't know if we can g ive 
exactly what these dol lars would buy. The health departments have said they are 
interested in increased environmental health services. For example, Central Val ley in  
Jamestown, we have two people that provide 8 counties with services and it's very l imited 
now so I would have to figure out how much money I would need out of this $4M to 
increase services to the counties. Also there's some talk with the school nursing , that is a 
need in  our communities and that is one of the areas that has been looked at is how they 
can expand and share some resources for school nurses so usual ly we would put together 
our plan and budgets with our partners and come back to the Health Department and give 
this budget and they would al lot this $4M to the locals. 

Senator Kilzer: Already there are a lot of grants that come through the state Health 
Department to a l l  the 29 units around the state, this is $4M more, why is not a d ifferent 
amount. I want to see what the services are in add ition to al l  the grants that come through 
the Health Department. 

Robin lszler: Probably our request is based on the population amount but let me visit with 
our partners and see if we can provide that information for you. (16 .02) 

Theresa Will, Director at City-County Health District (CCHD) in Valley City. Testified in 
favor of SB 2030 and provided Testimony attached # 2. Her testimony states the services 
that her agency provides for the citizens of Barnes County. She asked for support from this 
committee in  passing of this bi l l  because it wil l  help publ ic health gain a better capacity to 
improve health in our communities . (20:21) 
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Senator Wanzek: Both you and Robin talked a l ittle about the bi l l ing system and 
col laboration and we're hoping that this col laboration saves enough money to g ive us a 
return on that $4M investment By collaborating you've gotten one bi l l ing system you a l l  can 
use and spread the cost over all these public health un its. Is that the type of savings we are 
talking about? 

Theresa Will: Yes.  We were able purchase this system as a group and it has to be 
purchased for each health unit. (2 1.37) 

Vice Chairman Bowman: As a county commissioner, you said you saved over $6 ,000 so 
d id you reduce your budget the next year or did you keep that to use for something else. 

Theresa Will stated they were able to operate with a decreased mil l levy> 

Murray G. Sagsveen appeared in h is own personal capacity in support of SB 2030. He 
stated he was the state health officer in 1998 and 2000 and supported the local health un its 
then and as the state flood coord inator in 1997 in Grand Forks and 2011 in Minot he 
worked very closely with the local health un its . He stated he wanted to commend the local 
health un its and the leg islature for the job they have done regard ing this matter and asks 
that they support SB 2030. (24.43) 

Senator Krebsbach: I 've had opportun ity to visit the 1st District Health Un it in M inot and 
have l istened to what they have gone through with a l l  the additional work they've had to do 
and I would l ike to have Lisa Clute come and share in the area of environmental issues and 
vaccines. 

Lisa Clute, Executive Officer of 1st District Health Unit testified in favor of SB 2030. 
She said they are in a un ique position in Minot and the Souris val ley, a double whammy of 
the flood and oi l  boom impact. Some are the very simi lar issues that Wil l iston and 
Dickinson are dealing with in there are a few things_ we wou ld love to collaborate with in 
the western part of the state and this bi l l  would g ive us the funding and the opportunity to 
do that. 

1. Environmental health 
2 .  Labs 
3. Language barriers 
4. Legal services . 

She concluded her testimony by asking for the support of the committee on SB 2030. 
(30.07) 

Testimony # 3 -Final Evalutation Report: Southeast Regional Public Health Network Pi lot 
Project by Mona P. Close, MS. RN CPHQ. was submitted to the committee but no oral 
testimony was g iven .  

Chairman Holmberg: This i s  not in the governor's budget. He was told that is true. The 
hearing was closed on SB 2030. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regional public health network definitions. 

Minutes: stimony # 1 

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2030. Senator Grindberg and 
Senator Mathern were present. 

Legislative Council - Shei la M. Sandness 
OMB - Laney Herauf & Sheila Peterson 

Senator Kilzer wants to focus on what the $4M wil l  be used for and how it would fit in with 
additional appropriations. Also whether it was in the governor's budget and why it's an 
orphan out here. Any statements that weren't presented to the ful l  committee? 

Lisa Clute, Executive Director, 1st Distrct Health: This came out of interim committee.  
Testimony attached# 1 - SB 2030 - Regional Public Health Networks 
She recommended that there would be a committee that has 6-7 people that d istribute the 
plans. 

(3:50) Tammy Dillman, Finance Director, Central Valley Health District 
She's f i l l ing in for Robin lslzer who is at a meeting today. I was a project coord inator for 
the pi lot group for the five counties that did the SE Central Reg ional Network pi lot. I n  
add ition to the sample schedule, the d ifference there i s  that investing in  America's Health 
National Report suggested the $6/capita for prevention services. This funding would be 
helpful and it's in l ine with the work that local public hea lth currently does in addressing 
community health needs .  

Senator Kilzer would real ly l ike to know what the d ifference would be i f  we did n't fund this 
at al l .  Which services would my cousins get? Bring it down to people. Would they get 
vaccinations that they wouldn't otherwise get? Would they get treatment for communicable 
d iseases? Would they get screenings? Would they have nurses coming to the school once 
a week or once a month? Put it right down the care and things that d irectly affect people. 
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Lisa Clute: We can work to g ive you more detai l  to each one of these, but the problem is -
in the NW part of the state, what we would utilize these dol lars for is going to be 
immunization , environmental health capacity because that's where our problems are right 
now. 

Senator Kilzer: In  the pi lot area, it was Jamestown & Val ley City, but that is completely 
d ifferent. How can you take that pi lot project and apply it to the NW because the 
demograph ics and changes are d ifferent. $275,000 pi lot project and expand it to a $4M 
project for the whole state. 

Tammy Dillman: The communities are d ifferent, but some of the needs aren't that 
d ifferent. The bul lets on the sheet are needs.  The proposed amendments have identified 
some key activities for these networks to address. The work plans that the networks 
address wil l  be d irectly l inked and have to demonstrate how your work plan wi l l  address the 
needs in your community. The pi lot group had to select three administrative functions and 
three services to add ress in the work plan . At that t ime we didn't have a community 
assessment that was completed , but we do now. 

Lisa Clute: The one thing this wi l l  ensure is that you have environmental health services 
for the entire state and currently that is not happen ing . 

Senator Kilzer asked what the three people requested for environmental health would do.  
Lisa answered (9:23) - inspections, sewer l icensing , hotels, swimming pools, etc. 

(13:47) Senator Mathern asked if more people get sick when there is a lack of services. 

Keith Johnson, Chief Administrator, Custer Health - Currently the lakes in Kidder 
County (wh ich are being developed) have no upfront input on onsite water and sewer. 
In August, you can walk across the algae on a lot of the lakes. In Rolette County, they are 
having the same problem.  They are underserved to the point that they don't real ize the 
service can be p rovided . 

Senator Kilzer would you anticipate the $4M as a one-time investment for this coord ination 
that is going on; would it be a repeating request or would it be rol led into the Health Dept. 
budget. It comes from an interim committee,  but it's an orphan bi l l  because it's separate 
from the Health budget and was obviously not in the executive budget. 

Keith Johnson: Looked at h istory of REAs and we anticipate that th is would be up and 
run ning in  two biennium . 

Senator Kilzer commented that they are al l  professionals. Do they real ly need this much 
money to coord inate with other administrators of public hea lth un its? 

Discussed how publ ic health has grown and expanded over the years. Keith Johnson 
said the bi l l  addresses 15,000 people and Tammy Dillman said it mentions community 
needs. 
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Lisa Clute said some units are over 15,000 people and the intent of the bi l l  to is to make 
sure they have core public health services out there. The interim committee l iked 
coord inating administration and putting more boots on the ground. They also talked a lot 
about environmental health . 

Discussed the size of the health d istricts and the staffing needed. 

Tammy Dillman said its based on community need and the amendments in the bi l l  have 
provided that. 

Senator Grinberg: (asked of Arvy) - This has been talked about for a whi le. If we pass this 
bi l l ,  what wi l l  it look l ike five years from now? What value would it add to citizens? 

Arvy Smith: This was optional request #22 .  Many of our requests were funded in  the 
governor's budget, but this one wasn't. A study 6-8 years ago is how we came up with the 
orig inal  networking requirements . 

Discussed the networking and gaps in service and consol idated efforts. 

(37:47) Senator Kilzer: Where can I read about the REAs? 

Kelly Nagel, ND Public Health Liaison, ND Dept. of Health - I have a power point that 
they have provided to me and it's a lso in statute how they structure- a min imum population. 

Senator Grinberg: It's in the Career and Vocational Department with Wayne Kutzer. 

Lisa Clute: This is Senator Judy Lee's brain chi ld . She could answer questions. 

Sheila M. Sandness: I n  H B  1013 wi l l  answer questions of how the REAs are funded . It's 
in the DP I  budget. 

Theresa Will, Administrator at Kidder County Health in Val ley City - We were part of the 
study. We've gained some great efficiency that we continue to use with the bi l l ing systems 
and such . We've since completed our community health assessment and the needs that 
are community has identified is huge and we don't have the resources to address those 
needs such as obesity and chronic d isease prevention ,  increasing access to mental health 
and substance abuse prevention as wel l  as violence.  

Keith Johnson: We do not intend to provide a l l  the answers to al l  these issues, but 
through col laboration , we get to work with community partners to help make these issues 
addressable. 

Senator Kilzer said it's important to work with cl inics, hospitals and other organ izations and 
not take on the world .  When he hears of gaps, he wants to know they are truly gaps. He's 
not a proponent of every school having a school nurse. There are parental and fami ly 
issues that are not the school's responsibil ity. 
They wi l l  meet again early next week. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolut1 

Relating to reg ional publ ic health network definitions. 

Minutes: 

Legislative Counci l  - Sheila M .  Sandness 
O M B  - Laney Herauf 

Testimony # 1 

Senator Kilzer: Opened the hearing on SB 2030. (Senator Mathern is present, and 
Senator Grindberg is in  Washington,  DC. 

Keith Johnson, Custer Health: See testimony attached # 1 for recommended 
Amendments to SB 2030 Reg ional Public Health Networks. (Proceeded to expla in the 
amendments ,  how bi l l  would be enacted , and what the resu lts wou ld be, specifying the 
accountabi l ity of the act) 

(4:38) Senator Kilzer: You're representing the Health Department to make these changes, 
and the obvious question is why weren't they made early on? 

Keith Johnson: We took what the interim committee had put out and right now it is just the 
process of amend ing what the interim committee has done. I cannot really answer for the 
i nterim committee. We are trying to build the accountabi l ity provisions in  so that you are at 
peace with it. 

Senator Kilzer: Is Shei la at peace with it? 

Sheila M. Sandness, Legislative Council: I have not had time to review this,  but there 
doesn't seem to be anyth ing in here that would be a problem. 

Senator Kilzer: It doesn't seem make any substance, but it does clarify. 

Arvy Smith, Department of Health: Keith is representing local public health,  not the 
Health Department. We d id work together on these. If you recal l  at the last meeting ,  I had 
some concerns about how the money was going to be d istributed and so we set out to 
clarify that and found a couple of other things in the process. 
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Senator Mathern: I think is a work in  progress. I wou ld say that the interim committee 
probably just d idn't have time to get the work done in the interim. I see these as a friend ly 
amendment to the interim committee work. I do question the word ing on the second to the 
last paragraph, "a d istribution formula may be used", I think  that is a l ittle b it vague.  I 
wonder if that isn't too much delegation of authority without clarification of what that 
d istribution formula is .  I s  it based on population ,  or on geographies, etc? This could be a 
matter of some confl ict .  If Leg islative Council drafts this, would they have more specific 
language? 

Arvy Smith: At the last meeting a formula was presented to you and so it gave the 
appearance that this money would be d istributed based on a formula. I t  is not.  I t  needs to 
be on the merits of the network and the plan that they are going to put together. That is 
what we were after. The reason I added that comment was because I was reflecting back 
to what happened in real ity when we dealt with the EMS situation . We looked for gook 
plans and we were going to approve those plans but we got request for $?mi l l ion ,  when we 
on ly had $3 mill ion to spend , and so in  that situation , we needed to apply a formula .  We 
most l i kely wou ldn't provide a formula here, but it depends on how much money is a l lotted 
and whatever formu la wou ld be used wou ld be approved by this.  That is why that group of 
three locals and three health department people wou ld approve whatever formula that was 
if we were to use one. We were trying to say that it may be used but it may not be used or 
d istributed on formula. 

Senator Mathern: What is a formula to you? 

Arvy Smith: Often funding,  i t  may be a base plus, i t  may be something based on 
population ,  where we take money and say it is prorated out based on the popu lation of 
each local publ ic health un it, or whatever the situation might be. Sometimes we do  a base 
plus popu lation where everybody gets $6000 and the rest is prorated based on popu lation .  

Senator Mathern: J ust a minute ago you said something about the qual ity o f  proposa l .  . .  

Arvy Smith: That wou ld be the first criteria to look at. We would look at the qual ity of 
proposals coming in .  

Senator Mathern: I s  that part of  a formula? 

Arvy Smith: Not really . I d idn't envision it to be. They have to do an assessment of the 
network that they are forming and that wou ld determine what the needs are in  that network. 
Then we wou ld be looking at the qual ity of how their proposal met the needs of their 
network. I don't see that as a formula. 

Senator Mathern: That to me doesn't leave room for that. The word ing doesn't say qual ity 
of proposal .  

Arvy Smith: That was intended to be approved reg ional publ ic health, approved work plan 
and budget. That would be their proposal .  That is what that was intended to mean if that is 
not clear, it might be something to re-word . 
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(Senator Mathern , Arvy Smith , and Keith Johnson Discussed formula d istribution)  

(13: 17)Lisa Clute, First District Health, Minot, North Dakota: We modeled this after an 
immun ization task force that we set up for a public health un it. We had 3 locals and 3 state 
people and that worked g reat. It has some precedence in how we've administered the 
money. They cou ld col laborate and submit a plan .  

Senator Mathern: I am not d isputing the fact that we should do th is ,  I want to make sure 
that it is not a s ituation where the health officer can say that the formula is this and the local 
folks can say the formula is something else. If you feel comfortable with this,  I am. 

Keith Johnson: We want this to be accountable about as much as anyone. Whatever 
language that we can put in there to make it so. 

Senator Mathern: I suggest that we have Leg is lative Council draft these amendments and 
we could bring it to committee. 

Senator Kilzer: I am fine with that. In a practical matter, the vaccination program for the 
last 6-8 years has been on an up and down course. The feds used to fund it, now they g ive 
hard ly anyth ing .  There have been some independent bills the last few sessions that kind of 
stood to be the d istributers; what's happening in the future? 

Arvy Smith: The last time we were able to do al l  the vaccinations with just the federal 
vaccine was in 2003-2004. At that point there were some new vaccines that were qu ite 
expensive so then we had to get other effort involved there. The federal government 
supplies a l l  the vaccines for VFC so if you are uninsured , underinsured Med icaid ,  Native 
American ,  and Alaska Native - al l  those are sti l l  provided . That is at least 1/3 of the 
popu lation in  North Dakota. There was a second federal source of vaccine and that is 
cal led Section 317. In that states were al lowed to use what the needed for special projects. 
Last session it was decided that local public health un its would be able to do universal  
vaccines. That would mean that a l l  the vaccines would be provided for free. It was 
ca lcu lated that we get about $2 mil l ion a biennium from section 317 plus $1.5 mil l ion 
general fund and that a l l  goes to public health for un iversa l  vaccine in  the current bienn ium. 
As of th is October, the federal government said the 317 can no longer be used for insured 
people. We have enough for the current biennium to f i l l  that gap, but as we move into next 
bienn ium, we're asking for $1 mil l ion general fund to replace what we lost with the federal 
vaccine .  

Senator Kilzer: That wou ld take care of a l l  the needs? 

Arvy Smith: Yes,  at local public health units. 

Senator Kilzer: Would local public health units bill the insured? 

Arvy Smith: No, they would use the general fund money to vaccinate the kids. There is a 
$1.5 mil l ion in  our base plus the $1 mil l ion being added. 
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Keith Johnson: We don't b i l l  for the vaccine, but we do bi l l  for the administration of the 
vaccine. Med icaid is b i l led for the administration of those on Med icaid . 

Senator Kilzer: Are a l l  public health un its doing th is? 

Arvy Smith: Except for about 5. 

Senator Kilzer: What happens in those areas? 

Arvy Smith: They bi l l  insurance for the vaccine.  

Senator Kilzer: Last time we talked about gaps in service and things l ike that, is that 
something that we can go into a b it deeper? 

(22:14)Keith Johnson: I th ink you can say pretty fairly that environmental health statewide 
is go ing to  be bolstered . I n  areas where there currently is l ittle or  none, i t  is going to  be 
present and in areas where there is a present environmental health program, there is a 
need for strengthening especial ly in the patch .  That is one thing I can rel iably say is 
defin ite ly going to be needed . We have some real needs with chronic d isease that I th ink 
a re going to resu lt in programs from community health assessments. Community health 
assessments statewide are starting to coalesce around the same issues . They are not 
necessari ly issues that we have treated very wel l  in the past. We have got needs with 
chron ic d isease. Diabetes management and obesity are some examples. 

Senator Kilzer: Are there documents from the time when Murry Sagsveen travel led the 
state that describe the needs and goals of these units? Does every un it have its own 
goals? 

Keith Johnson: Every un it is autonomous. We are only recently getting to the point where 
an accred ited un it is going to del iver a uniform set of services based on commun ity needs .  
I n  1999 when we put everything under a local publ ic health unit, i t  d id not necessari ly 
stipulate that every publ ic health un it had to provide fu l l  service .  That is the way it resu lted . 
We have a lot of single nurse counties and we have a wide variety of health un its with wide 
variety of health services . So there are no documents that I am aware of. 

Lisa Clute: There was a document in the early 90's . Now that would have to be gotten 
from each local publ ic health un it. 

Senator Kilzer: I am wondering how relevant that would even be at this point. 

Keith Johnson: I can put the word out to the admin istrators and ask about it. 

Kelly Nagel, State Health Department: There was resistance at that time for 
consol idation.  This has nothing to do with consol idation . This is retain ing their autonomy. 
This is col laboration and so a l l  local publ ic health un its are ful ly onboard with this concept. 
If you go back to the consolidation/reg ional ization concept, you'l l get resistance. 

Senator Kilzer: We shouldn't be looking back too much , we should be looking forward . 
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Senator Mathern: When these amendments are drafted , I don't know if there wi l l  be two 
sections here . The funding appropriated and section and the add section 5 section. If there 
are two sections of the b i l l ,  I would add the words "to the approved reg ional public health 
networks" in  Section 5 so we don't have two appropriation processes going on here. That 
way it will be the same as the one before. 

Keith Johnson: I wou ld love to g ive you a l ist of services that wil l  be added as a resu lt of 
th is b i l l ,  but I th ink I would be irresponsible to do it. It may tie us into doing things that aren't 
necessary and we want to make sure that the things that we do put into place are 
necessary. It is going to vary across the state. As you know, publ ic health is not an easi ly 
quantifiable set of objectives or services and in fact that is only one of the ten core areas for 
us .  I sense your frustration with getting some concrete language that says that th is is what 
is going to benefit the people of North Dakota as a result of th is bi l l ,  but at the same time, I 
th ink if we did do that, we would be doing the effort a d isservice .  If we cou ld bi l l  language in  
here to make sure that we are accountable for resu lts, I th ink then we have a success . 

(31 :OO)Senator Kilzer: Asked an unrelated question that lasted the rest of the time. Closed 
the sub-committee d iscussion .  
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Relating to reg ional publ ic health network definitions. 

Minutes: 

Leg islative Council - Becky J .  Kel ler 
OMB - Laney Herauf & Joe Morrissette 

Senator Kilzer: Opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2030. Senator Grindberg and 
Senator Mathern were present. 

Senator Kilzer: Asked for comments from committee members. 

Senator Mathern: See attachment #1 for amendment 13.0034.03001. (Explained the 
amendments proposed) 

(2:23) Senator Kilzer: This would take authority away from whom and g ive it to whom? 

Senator Mathern: I don't see it as taking away the authority. It basically clarifies that the 
state publ ic health officer would get some input in terms for how these decisions would be 
made and that input would be from a committee of three local publ ic health representatives 
appointed by the association of health officials and three representatives that were 
appointed by the state health officer; essential ly though the state health officer wou ld have 
the final say. 

Senator Kilzer: When did we have this d iscussion? 

Senator Mathern: In one of our previous subcommittee meetings. I viewed it as needing to 
be done relating to the fact that the interim committee had a b i l l  coming forward but not 
time to attend to some of the detai ls in the bi l l  as to how they would be carried out. These 
amendments are j ust to attend to those deta i ls and they don't change the interim committee 
b i l l  in any substantial format. 

Senator Kilzer: Did the pol icy committee take this up at a l l  because that is where you 
would th ink it would come from? 
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Senator Mathern: Yes. 

Lisa Clute, Executive Officer, First District Health Unit: We talked to Senator Judy Lee 
and she said she was fine with it and that it doesn't change the intent. 

Senator Mathern: Did they see these amendments or did you express these concerns to 
the pol icy committee? 

Lisa Clute: These were not concerns at the policy committee. As I understand it, when 
the health department looked at them and they were concerned about the distribution 
process ,  so they were the ones that brought forward these amendments and suggestions 
and we agreed with them. 

Senator Kilzer: It would be my preference that if th is bi l l  makes it past crossover that it wi l l  
go t o  the pol icy committee in  the House and that might be a better place to have a thorough 
review of how the appl ication and the d istribution of the funds is carried out. What are the 
thoughts of the other committee members? 

Senator Grindberg: I have mixed messages on this piece of leg islation .  Part of me says 
that this is something that we need to do.  It should have been sorted out in the interim 
committee or in the pol icy committee. Maybe we're maybe not ready for this yet. There 
has to be a lot of work done before it goes into law. 

Senator Mathern: There is a lot of work to do and we can do a piece of it now. That is 
what these amendments are. These are amendments coming from the parties that have to 
make this work, and they have come to this agreement and we are a step in the process to 
help get it done. 

Senator Mathern: Moved the amendment. 

Lack of second - amendment is not adopted. 

(8:48)Senator Mathern: It's sti l l  a good bi l l  and I think we should send it out. I th ink  it is 
important that we do everything we can to support the ind ividual health d istricts cooperate 
with each other. I th ink there is a better qual ity of service that happens because of it. 

Senator Grindberg: With what you just said, wouldn't that continue to prevai l  if this bill is 
defeated? 

Senator Mathern: It real ly doesn't. What we learned with a couple of pilot projects we had,  
was wherein we d id th is k ind of thing and some of these smal ler un its combined with some 
of the bigger units and so the people in the reg ion got a h igher level of service because of 
that working together process .  Some un its might not have this service and another unit 
might have more services and by working together they basica l ly got that h igher level to 
every publ ic health unit in that region.  It was this process that made it happen so I don't 
th ink it wi l l  happen without this bi l l .  They just don't have the overhead to actually work 
together and elevate their services. They just sort of hunker down and do their own thing 
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with the l imited amount of resources they have but then the citizens miss out on some 
things.  

Senator Kilzer: I have a d ifferent take on it .  I feel that people who are in  publ ic health , j ust 
l ike people who are in education,  that should. be the qual ification of the people who are 
administering the various health units. That they work with the other neighboring un its . To 
me it's l ike schools; we hand out money from the legislature because schools have rapid ly 
increasing enrollment. We also have handed out money in schools that have a decl in ing 
enrol lment and then we hand out money to schools when they combine. To me a good 
superintendent is one who can make the adjustments without additional money. This item 
d id n't make the executive budget. I th ink there are better ways to spend the money, so I 'm 
going to support a do not pass on this bi l l. 

Senator Mathern: When you brought up the schools, it is a very appropriate comparison 
and what we have done in  schools is funded regional educational networks. That really is 
what this is. That superintendent that has reduced funding or something dramatic has 
happened , they might have to change the services that are avai lable or the personnel  may 
need to be changed . The regional education network can make up those d ifferences by 
using a staff person from the reg ional center for a service verses d uplicating it in h is own 
school d istrict. We fund that regional network for schools. This is essentially using that 
model in the publ ic health sector. 

Senator Kilzer: Then why would they need extra money to come to that decision? 

Senator Mathern: I suppose it is because there is the freedom to not be putting o ut fires 
every day. 

Senator Kilzer: Money doesn't buy freedom. I feel that there are needs - computer needs, 
vaccine needs over and above what we are fund ing.  This is admin istrative and it's n ice, but 
I prefer OARs to be d irected toward people. I n  another b i l l, we're increasing the colorectal 
screening and re-screening ,  and I think making it appl icable to more people d irectly and 
this b i l l  does not do that in  a very d irect way. 

Senator Mathern: Maybe it has not clearly enunciated then. People wi l l  get services here 
in these local publ ic health un its. Those are d irect services and individuals benefit from it. 

Senator Grindberg: Moved Do Not Pass. 

Senator Kilzer: Seconded. 

Senator Mathern: Voted against. 

The subcommittee recommendation to the full committee will be Do Not Pass. 
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A B I LL relating o reg ional publ ic health network definitions. (Do Pass . )  

Minutes: 

C hairman H olmberg cal led the committee to order on Wednesday, February 20, 201 3. Al l  
committee members were present. 

Brady Larson -Leg islative Counci l  
Joe Morrissette-OM B 

2030 job # 19222 

(0:00:50) Senator Krebsbach 2030 is the one about 4M for regional public health, 
comes from interim health services. There was a study of the public health units 
Jamestown, Valley City area, for $275,000 and this grew to this bill to cover the whole 
state. A do not pass on 2030 

Senator Krebsbach moved a do not pass. 2"d by Vice Chairman Grindberg. 

(0:01 :33) Senator Mathern I hope you resist this motion. We had an interim study that 
reviewed the pilot project if you get 3 or 5 public health districts to work together, that 
proj ect was out the Jamestown the south west. A sharing of the expertise of those 
d istricts that had more staff with those that had fewer staff, and a coordination of 
services, when there is a larger group. Creating regional networks. This is what is 
happening in public health, the success of the pilot projects suggest we do  this around the 
state. It funds  regional networks around the state. I ask for a do pass. 

(0:3:29) Senator Kilzer: this was an OAR optional request. The governor did not have 
it in his budget. Your committee felt that money could be spent otherwise, even in the 
pi lot project; a lot of that money was used for computers. Recommends a Do Not Pass. 
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(0:04:14) Senator Krebsbach this was the funding bill for the 17  areas did not have 
registration for the septic units the funding for that was included in this bill. Is  it true? 

(0:04:54) Senator Mather I could comment on that. Senator Krebsbach question about 
septic systems is a good example of what happens in the districts. What are the rules that 
have all the rules and procedures, I suspect that is one of the ways this could be used. 
Versus one district doing it well and one not doing anything. 

(0:05:59) Chairman Holmberg . Call the roll on a DO NOT PASS. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 6 Nay: 7; Absent: 0. Motion failed. 

Senator Mathern moved a do pass . 2"d by Senator Warner. 

Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on a DO PASS on SB 2030. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 8; Nay: 5; Absent: 0. 

Senator Mathern will carry the bill. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2030. 
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D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A B ILL relating to regional public health network defin itions, joint powers agreement review, 
annual plan , and receipt and use of moneys; and to provide an appropriation. 

Minutes: Testimony #1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 

Chairman Weisz opened the hearing on SB 2030 

01:52 Kelly Nagel, Public Health liaison for the ND Dept. of Health: provided 
background information on the local public health system and on the proposed changes to 
Century Code 23-35.1. (See Testimony #1) Listed benefits of the National Association of 
City and County Health Officials. 

7:08 Senator Lee, District 13, West Fargo: introduced and supported the b i l l .  This was 
researched two sessions ago. This is an important project and was designed for schools. 
Mu lti-county units find this advantageous to collaborate with other county units. This is a 
voluntary and flexible project. There would be more consistent services throughout the 
state. Once it is up and working there should not be any sign ificant additional expenses. I 
ask for a favorable consideration. 

11:12 Kelly Nagel resumed her testimony. 

16:58 Representative Porter: What was the appropriation level last time and what this 
money is going to buy? 

Nagel: There was no funding last session, but the session before there was $275,000 
appropriated for the pilot project. The $4 mil l ion appropriation and how it wi l l  be spent wi l l  
vary accord ing to each network because it  is voluntary. There is testimony from d ifferent 
regions of the state. 

19:11 Representative Porter: So none of the $4 mil l ion dol lars does not stay inside the 
Hea lth Department and no FTE's required inside the Health Department in order to do th is? 

Nagel: That is correct. 
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1 9:32 Representative Porter: There are 17 counties that don't have environmental health 
services. If they choose to collaborate then are they mandated to do those core 
components so then they would have to have an environmental health section to that s ide 
of the Public Health responsibi l ities? 

Nagel: I 'm not sure where that information from Natural Resources came from. 

20:48 Representative Porter: The bi l l  has two FTEs for the Health Department to take 
over the septic side of things for the environmental health on 25 and over occupancy and 
then it pushes the other component of 25 and less back to the locals, has an entire 
certification program and an education component in it for the contractors, but in that 
testimony it was stated that there are 17 counties that don't have current environmental 
health services . 

Nagel: There are 17 that don't employ environmental health. 

22:03 Representative Porter: Those two FTEs are for inspections of those larger systems. 

Nagel: I thought the one bi l l  was for a statewide program and the other for bigger systems. 

23:08 Representative Porter: There are three d ifferent bi l ls deal ing with the same issue. 

Nagel: This bi l l  is not d i rectly related to environmental health . 

23:49 Chairman Weisz: It cou ld have an effect on that component. Money was to be used 
not to provide services, but for putting together that network. 

Nagel: That is correct. 

25: 1 4  Chairman Weisz: I got the impression the $4 mil l ion cou ld be used for services not 
just the cost of bring ing the network together and the network up and running. 

Nagel: Correct. 

26: 1 9  Ruth Bachmeier, Director at Fargo Cass Public Health: in support of the b i l l .  
Testimony read by Kelly Nagel .  (See Testimony #2) Together we are using quality 
improvement methods and tools to try and determine best outcomes. Shared h igh l ights of 
the first year of their col laborative and lessons learned through the experience. 

29:30 Robin lszlaer, Administrator at Central Valley Health District, Jamestown: 
testified in support of the b i l l .  (See Testimony #3) Explained the h istory and h ighl ights of 
their SE Central Publ ic Health network project. This bi l l  wil l allow for improvements to local 
publ ic health departments in NO by encouraging reg ional shared services. 

34:08 Representative Fehr: Are you aware of the problems of the REA's? 

lszlaer: Not famil iar completely with their problems. 
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34:56 Theresa Will, Director at City-County Health District, Valley City: Read by Robin 
lszlaer. (See Testimony #4) This bill will help loc(ll public health of all types/sizes gain a 
better capacity to improve health in  our communities. 

Handed in  testimony in  support: 

From several health un it directors in NO: (See Testimony #5) 

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing on SB 2030. 
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Chairman Weisz: Let's take up 2030. I wil l  g ive you my op1n10n of the odds in  
appropriation which are zero. I support the regional public health network. We fought hard 
to get the p ilot project back in  2009 and get some funding. I don't have with the language. 
The problem is the $4 mi ll ion is not real ly in  there for the purpose of implementing the 
regional health network. 

Rep. Porter: I agree that the core activities and the policy language need to stay so I move 
we amend out Section 5 of the bi l l .  

Chairman Weisz: Take out everything (inaudible) money for implementation or not? 

Rep. Porter: It just removes the $4 mil lion. The public health entities have their mi l  levies 
to work with to implement the policies that are there. The pilots we funded i n  the past, a lot 
of those software programs and bil l ing stuff is available to them now. I think they are ready 
to go on their own. 

Rep. Laning:  Second. 

Rep. Oversen :  I resist this motion .  Giving them the freedom to do something,  but not 
backing it up,  it is not going to go very far. The locals may have the abi lity to do that, but 
u n less it is coming from statewide broad approach to a llow them to work together, this is 
not going to accomplish anything. 

Rep. Fehr: If some un its are working toward creating a network. If they put together a plan 
cou ld n't they come back in  2 years and say this is money we have come up with and this is 
what we want to do, opposed to pul l ing the money out now? 

Chairman Weisz: I n  the pilot project, the money, $275,000 was a carrot for you to develop 
a regional publ ic health network. They d id in Stutsman County and three other counties. 
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The money wasn't avai lable for just funding their services. This bi l l  is only funding publ ic 
health services. I don't support the $4 mil l ion and I don't know what Appropriations wil l  do. I 
don't have a problem giving them some money to give them some incentive to get the 
publ ic health units to work together. They saved an equivalent of one FTE in the p ilot 
project. 

Rep. Mooney: Isn't there a l imitation in statute to just how many m ils can be levied for the 
d istrict health units? We can't just levy more. Correct? 

Chairman Weisz: I believe that is correct. I think it is a 5 mil .  

Rep.  Porter: I would think one of the purposes of created a regional public health network is 
to group you r  resources together and save money. The mi l  levies out there should go down 
because of the efficiencies of the regional publ ic health unit. The language in Section 5 is 
for the Dept. of Health to help establish, administer and operate regional publ ic health 
networks i n  the state. We d id the pilot projects to show that it works. 

Rep. Si lbernagel: We received testimony from Ruth Bachmeier from Fargo/Cass Public 
Health and they are involved in  a 3 year grant funded by the Busch Foundation and it 
i ncludes Cass, Ransom, Richland , Sargent, Steele and Trai l  Counties. This would be a 
second area to resource in  addition to the project funded by the state. 

Rep. Fehr: I 'm going to support the motion . There were several comments in  reference to 
modeling after the REAs and there are significant problems with the REAs. Taking the 
appropriation out el iminates the issues I have with it. 

VOICE VOTE:  MOTION CARRIED 

Chairman Weisz: This one wil l  be in  conference at this point. 

Rep. Fehr: I move a Do Pass as Amended. 

Rep. Laning : Second. 

Rep. Porter: We have the Health Dept. budget on our side right now. I th ink a 
conversation with Rep. Pollert would be in order in  regards to that. That m ig ht take the 
need for a conference committee on this bi l l  out and just pass policy and have them look at 
if they want implementation grants inside of that budget or not. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 1 0  y 3 no 0 absent 

Bi l l  Carrier: Rep. Porter 
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PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2030 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  remove "; and to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove "provide an appropriation" 

Page 4,  remove l ines 30 and 3 1  

Page 5 ,  remove l ines 1 through 3 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2030: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
( 1 0  YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2030 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 , line 3, remove "; and to" 

Page 1 , line 4, remove "provide an appropriation" 

Page 4, remove lines 30 and 31 

Page 5 ,  remove lines 1 through 3 

Renumber accordingly 
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2013 SENATE STAN DING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2030 
4/10/13 
2 1074 

[gl Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature '-U/14 1/ , -./ 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regional publ ic health network definitions, joint power agreement review, annual  
plan ,  and receipt and us of  moneys ; and to provide an appropriation. 

Minutes: 

Sen. J. Lee, Sen. Anderson, Sen. Dever are present. 
Rep. Porter, Rep. Looysen, Rep. Oversen are present. 

Senator J. Lee opens the conference committee for SB 2030 

Senator J. lee asks for clarification on the amendments that were made to S B  2030. 

Senator J. Lee d iscusses testimony in Senate Human Services committee hearings. 

Keith Johnson is recognized administrator for Custer health which is a reg ional un it, 
shares with the committee the cost efficiencies and publ ic health . Mr. Johnson also 
d iscusses the cost of provid ing services with in the counties. Senator J Lee. Discusses how 
much work publ ic health un its are and funding the public health un its . Mr. Johnson shares 
with the committee about environmental health needs, in addition to other needs of the 
reg ional health units . Senator Anderson d iscusses that the funding is not for add itional 
services, and d iscusses the fund ing in SB 2030. Senator J. Lee shares that we are not 
looking at expanding services and offering the services in a timely matter. 
Senator Dever d iscusses that this is optional ,  asks if the money in a onetime spending,  
and how was the amount determined. Senator J. lee asks how many reg ional PH U's wou ld 
establ ish with the orig inal b i l l .  Senator J. Lee asks about the program in Jamestown. 
Representative Overson asks for clarifications on units that are close to the 5 mil l  l imit. . 
Representative Porter asks what stops a county from using the general funds dollars. 
Senator J Lee d iscusses about not having the units restructure. Reprehensive Porter 
I nquires about revenue are generated from fees. 

Senator J. Lee closes the conference committee. 



2013 SE NATE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room , State Capitol 

SB 2030 
4/12/13 
21129 

� Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regional public health network definitions, joint power agreement review, annual 
p lan,  and receipt and us of moneys; and to provide an appropriation.  

Minutes: 

Sen. Dever , Sen.  J lee is absent, , Sen.  Anderson are present 

Rep. Porte , r  Rep . Looysen, Rep. Overson are present. 

Sen. Dever opens the conference committee. 

Sen. Dever discusses were the SB 2030 stands at the time of the conference Committee. 

The Committee d iscusses that there is no new information at this t ime and wil l  adjou rn and 
reschedu le .  

Sen. Dever closes the Conference Committee SB 2030 



2013 SE NATE STAN DING COMM ITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2030 
4/16/13 
21180 

� Conference Committee 

Comm i ttee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution:  

Relating to reg ional public health network definitions, joint power agreement review, annual  
plan,  and receipt and us of moneys; and to provide an appropriation .  

M i n utes : You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Sen. J. Lee opens the conference committee SB 2030 

Sen. J. Lee d iscusses the information from Brenda Stal lman,  Director at Trai l  District 
Health U nit. Attachment #1 

Rep. Porter discusses funding for health units. 
Sen. J. Lee asks for clarification on how they would establish the reg ion . 

Sen. J. Lee discusses about add ing more un its and fund ing . 

There is d iscussion about the units and funding. 

Sen. Anderson d iscusses the information from Brenda Stal lman 

Keith Johnson from Custer Health is recognized , d iscusses the language of 
establishment of environmental heal services. 

There is a d iscussion about funding for the project(s) . 

Rep. Oversen shares her concerns with the language of establ ishment. 

There is d iscussion on adding Planning language. 

Rep. Porter discusses proposed amendment .03004 #2. 

Sen. J. Lee discusses funding and the tribal health units. 



Senate H u m a n  Services Committee 
SB 2030 
4/1 6/1 3 
Page 2 

Sen. J lee discusses about moving forward with SB 2030 

Sen. J. Lee closes the conference committee SB 2030 



2013 SE NATE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2030 
4/17/13 
21214 

� Conference Committee 

1//�- -
Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to regional publ ic health network definitions, joint power agreement review, annual  
plan ,  and receipt and us of moneys; and to provide an appropriation. 

Minutes: 

Sen . J Lee, Sen . Dever, Sen . Anderson are present. 
Rep. Porter, Rep. Looysen, Rep. Oversen are present. 

Sen. J. Lee opens the conference committee for SB 2030 

There is a d iscussion on the funding for SB 2030. 

Rep. Porter asks about the tribal component amendment. 

There is a d iscussion about the tribal health amendment. 

Sen. J. Lee talks about the fund ing and public health un its and the services they provide. 

Rep. Oversen states that she is favor of the raising the funding to 1 mi l l ion. 

Sen. J Lee closes the conference committee for SB 2030 



2013 SE NATE STANDING COM MITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Human Services Comm ittee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2030 
4/1 8/ 13  
2 1 278 

� Conference Committee 

Comm ittee Clerk Signature IIA �:e 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resol ution : 

Relating to reg ional publ ic health network defin itions, joint power agreement review, annual 
p lan,  and receipt and us of moneys; and to provide an appropriation. 

Min utes: 

Sen. J .  Lee , Sen . Dever, Sen . Anderson are present. 
Rep. Weiz (sitting in for Rep. Porter) Rep. Looysen, Rep .  Oversen a re present. 

Sen. J. Lee opens the conference committee SB 2030 

Sen. J. Lee discusses were the committee left off. 

There is a d iscussion on the funding with in SB 2030 . 

There is a d iscussion on the program in Jamestown , NO.  

S e n .  J.  Lee closes the conference committee SB 2030. 



2013 SE NATE STAN DING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate H uman Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2030 
4/19/13 
21338 

1Z1 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Sig nature 

Expla nation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resol ution :  

Relating to regional publ ic health network definitions, joint power agreement review, annual 
plan , and receipt and us of moneys; and to provide an appropriation .  

Min utes : You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Sen. J .  Lee , Sen . Dever, Sen . Anderson are present 
Rep. Porter, Rep. Looysen,  Rep. Oversen are present 

Sen. J. Lee opens the conference committee for SB 2030 

Rep. Porter explains amendments . 03005 

There is a d iscussion on the amendment(s). 

Rep. Porter motions for the House to recede from House amend ments and amend as 
fol lows 

Rep. Looysen seconds 

6 yes 
0 no 
0 absent 

Motion passes. 

Sen. J lee closes the conference committee for SB 2030 



1 3.0034.05000 

Amendment to: SB 2030 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/22/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . 

t' t' . t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tcJpa e un er curren aw. 
2011-2013 Biennium 

' 
2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $700,000 
Appropriations $700,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school d istrict and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The Bill defines regional public health networks, sets guidelines for joint powers agreements, and creates tribal 
public health units. The amendment includes grant funding to regional public health networks to include tribal public 
health units. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments releva.nt to the analysis. 

i- . 

Section 1 3  of the Bill includes an appropriation to the Department of Health for grants to regional public health 
networks to include tribal public health units. The Bill does not have a fiscal impact on the Department of Health nor 
on the Local Public Health Units regarding the administration of the regional public health networks as FTE positions 
exist to provide for the administration of the grants. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive bu�get. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The bill provides $700,000 in the grants line item for the planning or establishment of regional networks, which 
include tribal public health units. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts.· Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

No appropriation is needed as funding is included withir this bill. 

Name: Brenda M. Weisz 

Agency: Department of Health 

Telephone: 328-4542 
Date Prepared: 04/23/201 3  

1 : 



Amendment to: SB 2030 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

03/27/201 3  

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the. fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
d levels and appropriations anticipated un er current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium : 2013-2015 Biennium · 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school d istrict and township fiscal effect: Identify the .fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium •' 
Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief su�mary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

· 

The Bill defines regional public health networks and $ets guidelines for joint powers agreements. The amendment 
removes proposed grant funding to regional public health networks. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The Bill does not have a fiscal impact on the Department of Health nor on the Local Public Health Units as the Bill 
establishes definitions and guidelines for regional publip health networks. The Bill provides permissive language and 
guidance for regional networks, not a mandatory requirement to establish such networks. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under st�te fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

' 
B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, foreach agency, line item, and 

fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 



Name: Brenda M. Weisz 

Agency: Department of Health 

Telephone: 328-4542 
Date Prepared: 03/28/201 3  

! ·  

; 
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I .  



1 3 .0034.03006 
Title. 05000 

Adopted by the Confere nce Committee 

April 1 9 , 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2030 

That the House recede from i ts amendments as printed on page 939 of t h e  Senate Journal and 
page 1 086 of the House Journal and that Senate Bi l l  No. 2030 be amended as fol lows:  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "Act" insert "to create and enact a new section to ch a pter 23-35 of  the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to tribal health districts ; "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "reenact" insert "section 23-35-01 , subsection 2 of  s e ction 23-35-03,  
subsection 1 of section 23-35-04," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" i nsert "23-35-06, 23-35-07, 23-35-08, "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2,  after "to" insert "health districts ,"  

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  after the sem icolon i nsert "to provide a report to the legisl ative management;" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. A M E N DM ENT. Section 23-35-0 1 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23-35-01 . Defin itions. 

As used i n  th is  chapter, un less the context otherwise req u i res: 

1 .  "Board of health" means a district, county, eF city, or tr ibal board of heal th .  

2 .  "Department" means the state department of health . 

3. "Govern ing body" means, as appl icable, a city comm ission,  city counci l ,  
board of county commissioners, eF joint board of cou nty com missioners. or 
tribal cou nci l .  

4 .  "Health d istrict" means an entity formed under secti o n  23-35-04 or 
23-35-05. 

5. "J oint board of county commissioners" means the boa rds of county 
commissioners of two or more counties acting togethe r  in  jo int  session .  

6 .  "Local health officer" means the health officer of a p u bl ic  health u nit. 

7. "Public health department" means a city eF ... county or  tribal health 
department formed under this chapter. 

8 .  "Publ ic heal th un i t" means the local organization formed under this chapter 
to provid e  publ ic health services in a city, county, or d esignated mu l ticounty 
or ci ty-county area, or Indian reservation .  The term i ncl udes a city publ ic 
health department,  county publ ic health department, tribal health 
department, and a health district. 

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 23-35 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as fol lows: 
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, . .. 
Tri bal health units. 

An Ind ian nation that occupies a reservation the external  boundaries of which 
border more than four cou nties may form a health d istrict or pub l ic  health department 
as provided i n  this chapter. A tribal publ ic health un it and borderi ng publ ic health un its 
shal l  col laborate regarding the provision of public health services .  If an ind ividual who 
is not an enro l led member of an I ndian tribe of the I nd ian reservation that forms a tribal 
public health u n it is a party to a civil action in which the tribal publ ic  health u nit is also a 
party, that i ndiv idual  may bring the action in or move the action to tribal court or district 
court. 

SECTION 3.  AM ENDM ENT. Subsection 2 of section 23-35-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

2. A city's ef.L county's, or tribe's governing body may e stabl ish a publ ic health 
un it by creat ing and appointing a board of health,  wh ich in the case of a 
city, m ay be composed of the city's govern ing body, o r  in the case of a 
tribe, may be composed of the tribal cou nci l  or governi ng body. A board of 
health must have at least five members . 

a .  In  the case of a board of health created by a jo int board of  county 
commissioners, each county in the health  d istrict m ust have at least 
one representative on the board; each county of over fifteen thousand 
population must have an additional representat ive for each fifteen . 
thousand population or major fract ion of that n u m ber; and i n  a health 
d istrict of fewer than five counties , each cou nty m ust have at least one 
representative on the district board of health , a n d  the additional 
representatives selected to constitute the mini m u m  five-member 
board must be equitably apportioned among the counties on a 
population basis. 

b. I n  the case of a joint city-county health d istrict composed of only one 
county and having at least one city over fifteen t h ousand population, 
each city having a population over fifteen thous a nd m ust have a 
representative on the district board of health for each fifteen thousand 
population or major fraction of that n u m ber, and the remain ing 
population of the county, exclusive of the popu l at ions of cities with 
more than  fifteen thousand each , m u st have a representative on the 
district board of health for each fifteen thousand population or major 
fraction of that number, or at least one member if the remain ing 
population is less than fifteen thousand.  

SECTION 4. AMENDM ENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-35-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 .  U pon the adoption of a resolution, the governi ng body may form a single 
county, multicounty, Sf-a city-county, or tribal health d istrict. 

SECTIO N  5.  AM ENDMENT. Section 23-35-06 of the North D a kota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23-35-06. Health districts - Dissol ution - Withdrawal. 

1 .  #Except for a tribal health district, if a health district h as been i n  operation 
for two years , the district may be dissolved as provided for under this 
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section. If a petition is fi led with the county auditor of each county of a 
health d istrict which is signed by qualified electors of t h at county equal to 
ten percent or more of the votes cast in that county at the last g eneral 
election , an election on the question of dissolution m u st be presented to 
the qual ified electors in each county in the d istrict at the next e lection held 
in each county in the district. If a majority of the votes cast on the question 
in a majority of the counties favor d issolution,  the health d istrict is 
d issolved on the second January fi rst fol lowing the e lection .  If a majority of 
the votes cast on the question in  a majority of the counties are against 
d issolution ,  no other election on this issue may be he ld  for two years . 

2 .  If a health district has been i n  operation for two years, a n y  county may 
withdraw from the district as provided under this section .  I f  a petition is filed 
with the withdrawing county's aud itor which is signed by q ual ified electors 
of the county equal to ten percent or more of the votes cast i n  that county 
at the last general election ,  an election on the questio n  of withdrawal must 
be presented to the qual ified electors in the county at the next election in  
the county. If a majority of the votes cast on the question favor withdrawing 
from the district,  the county is withdrawn from the district on the second 
January first fol lowing the election .  If a majority of the votes cast on the 
question are against withdrawal ,  no other election on th is  issue may be 
held for two years. 

� A tribal health district may be d issolved by the tribal cou nci l  or govern ing 
body at any time. 

S ECTION 6. A M E N DM ENT. Section 23-35-07 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

23-35-07. Health district funds. 

1 .  AExcept for a tribal health d istrict, a district board of h ealth shal l  prepare a 
budget for the next fiscal year at the time at which a n d  in the manner in  
which a county budget is adopted and shall submit t h i s  budget to the joint 
board of county commissioners for approval .  The amount budgeted and 
approved must be prorated in health districts compose d  of more than one 
county among the various counties in the health d istrict  accord ing to the 
taxable valuation of the respective counties in the health district .  For the 
purpose of this section, "prorated" means that each m ember county's 
contribution must be based on an equal ized mi l l  levy throughout the 
district, except as otherwise permitted under subsect ion 3 of section 
23-35-05.  Within ten days after approval by the joint board of county 
commissioners ,  the district board of health shal l  certify the budget to the 
respective county auditors a nd the budget must be i n cl uded in the levies of 
the cou nties. The budget may not exceed the amount that can be raised by 
a levy of five mi l ls  on the taxable valuation,  subject to p ubl ic hearing i n  
each cou nty in  the health district at least fifteen days before an  action 
taken by the joint board of  county commissioners.  Act ion taken by the joi nt 
board of county commissioners m ust be based on the record , i nclud i ng 
comments received at the publ ic hearing . A levy under this section is not 
subject to the l imitation on the county tax levy for gene ral  and special 
county purposes. The amou nt derived by a levy under this section m ust be 
placed in  the health district fund .  The health district fund must be deposited 
with and disbursed by the treasurer of the district board of health. Each 
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county in a health district quarterly shal l  remit and make settlements with 
the treasurer. Any funds remai n ing in the fund at the end of any fiscal year 
may be carried over to the next fiscal year. 

2 .  =R=leExcept for a tribal health district, the d istrict board of health ,  or the 
president and secretary of the board when authorized or delegated by the 
board, shal l  audit al l  claims against the health district fund . The treasurer 
shal l  pay al l  claims from the health district fund.  The d istrict board of health 
shal l  approve or ratify al l  claims at the board's quarterly meetings. 

SECTION 7.  A M E N D M ENT. Section 23-35-08 of the North D akota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23-35-08. Boards of health - Powers and d uties. 

Except when in confl ict with a local ordinance or a civil service rule with in  a 
board of health's jurisdiction ,  or a tribal code, ordinance, or pol icy, e ach board of 
health: 

1 .  Shal l  keep records and make reports requ i red by the d e partment. 

2. Shall  prepare and submit a publ ic health un it budget. 

3. Shal l  audit ,  a l low, and certify for payment expenses i ncurred by a board of 
health i n  carrying into effect this chapter. 

4. May accept and receive any contribution offered to a i d  in the work of the 
board of health or public health un it .  

5 .  May make ru les regarding any n uisance, source of  fi l th ,  and any cause of 
sickness wh ich are necessary for publ ic health and s afety. 

6 .  May establ ish by  rule a schedule of reasonable fees t h at may be charged 
for services rendered. Services may not be withheld d ue to an i nabi l ity to 
pay any fees establ ished under this subsection. If a tribal board of health 
establ ishes fees for services rendered, the fees may n ot exceed the 
h ighest corresponding fee of any of the public health u n its that border the 
tribal public health unit. 

7 .  M a y  make rules in  a health district o r  county publ ic h e a lth department, as 
the case may be, and in  the case of a city publ ic health department may 
recommend to the city's governi ng body ordinances for the protection of 
publ ic health  and safety. 

8 .  May adopt confinement, decontamination ,  and sanitary measures in  
compl iance with chapter 23-07.6  which are necessary when an  infectious 
or contagious d isease exists. 

9. May make and enforce an order in a local matter if an emergency exists.  

1 0 . May inqui re i nto any nuisance, source of fi l th ,  or cause of sickness. 

1 1 .  Except in  the case of an emergency, may cond uct a s e a rch or seize 
materia l  located on private property to ascertain  the condition of the 
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property as the condition relates to publ ic health and safety as authorized 
by an administrative search warrant issued under chapter 29-29. 1 .  

1 2 . May abate or remove any nuisance, source of fi lth , or  cause of s ickness 
when necessary to protect the publ ic health and safety. 

1 3 . May supervise any matter relating to preservation of l i fe and health of 
ind ividuals, including the supervision of any water su pply and sewage 
system. 

1 4 . M ay isolate, k i l l ,  or remove any animal  affected with a contag ious or 
i nfectious d isease if the an imal  poses a material risk to human health and 
safety. 

1 5 . Shal l  appoint a local health officer. 

1 6 . May employ any person necessary to effectuate board rules and this 
chapter. 

1 7 . If a public health unit is served by a part-time local hea lth officer, the board 
of health may appoint an executive d irector. An executive d irector is 
subject to removal for cause by the board of health. The board of health 
may assign to the executive d irector the duties of the l ocal health officer, 
and the executive director shal l  perform these duties u nder the d irection of 
the local health officer. 

1 8 . May contract with any person to provide the services necessary to carry 
out the purposes of the board of health. 

1 9 . Shal l  designate the location of a local health officer's office and shal l  
furnish the office with necessary equ ipment. 

20. May provide for personnel the board of health consid e rs necessary. 

2 1 . Shal l  set the salary of the local health officer, the executive d i rector, and 
any assistant local health officer and shall set the com pensation of any 
other public health unit personnel .  

22.  Shal l  pay for necessary travel of the local health officer, the local health 
officer's assistants, and other personnel in the manner  and to the extent 
determined by the board . "  

Page 4 ,  rem ove l ines 3 0  and 3 1  

Page 5 ,  rep lace l i nes 1 through 3 with : 

"SECTION 1 2. STATE DEPARTMENT OF H EALTH REPORTS TO T H E  
LEGISLATIVE MANAGEM ENT - TRIBAL P U BLIC H EALTH U N IT PI LOT PROJECT. 
During the 20 1 3- 1 4  interim ,  the state department of health shall re port semiannual ly to 
the leg is lative management on the status of the tribal publ ic health un it p i lot project, 
i nclud ing services provided , resources avai lable, expenditures, a n d  the future 
sustainabi l ity of the pi lot project. 

S ECTION 1 3. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the 
general  fund i n  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $700,000, or 
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so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the 
purposes of planning or estabiishing,  or both, a regional public health network, for the 
biennium beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 3 , and ending June 30 ,  201 5 .  The department may not 
spend more than $250, 000 for each regional public health netwo rk . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2030: Your conference committee (Sens. J .  Lee, Anderson ,  Dever and Reps. Porter, 

Looysen ,  Oversen) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the House 
amendments as printed on SJ page 939, adopt amendments as follows, and place 
SB 2030 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 939 of the Senate Journal 
and page 1 086 of the House Journal and that Senate Bi l l  No. 2030 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "Act" insert "to create and enact a new section to chapter 23-35 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to tribal health districts;" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "reenact" insert "section 23-35-01 , subsection 2 of section 23-35-03, 
subsection 1 of section 23-35-04,"  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert "23-35-06, 23-35-07 , 23-35-08," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  after "to" insert "health d istricts," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after the semicolon insert "to provide a report to the legislative management;" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 5 ,  insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 23-35-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23-35-01 . Defi nitions. 

As used in this chapter, un less the context otherwise requires: 

1 .  "Board of health" means a district, county, ef city, or tribal board of health . 

2 .  "Department" means the state department of  health. 

3. "Governing body" means, as applicable, a city commission , city cou nci l ,  
board of county commissioners, ef joint board of county commissioners� 
or tribal counci l .  

4 .  "Health d istrict" means an entity formed under section 23-35-04 or 
23-35-05. 

5 .  "Joint board of county commissioners" means the  boards of county 
commissioners of two or more counties acting together in joint session.  

6 .  "Local health officer'' means the health officer of  a publ ic health un it. 

7. " Publ ic health department" means a city eF� cou nty, or tribal health 
department formed under this chapter. 

8 .  "Publ ic health un it" means the local organization formed u nder th is 
chapter to provide publ ic health services in a city, county, or designated 
multicounty or city-county area, or I nd ian reservation. The term includes 
a city public health department, county publ ic health department, tribal 
hea lth department, and a health district. 

S ECTION 2. A new section to chapter 23-35 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 
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An I ndian nation that occupies a reservation the external boundaries of 
which border more than four counties mav form a health district or publ ic health 
department as provided in this chapter. A tribal public health un it and bordering 
publ ic health un its shall collaborate regarding the provision of public health services. 
If an i ndividual who is not an enrol led member of an Ind ian tribe of the I ndian 
reservation that forms a tribal publ ic health un it is a party to a civil action in which the 
tribal publ ic health unit is a lso a party, that individual may bring the action in or move 
the action to tribal court or d istrict court. 

S ECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 23-35-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2 .  A city's eri county's, or tribe's govern ing body may establ ish a publ ic 
health unit by creating and appointing a board of health , which in the 
case of a city, may be composed of the city's governing body, or i n  the 
case of a tribe, may be composed of the tribal cou ncil or govern ing body. 
A board of health must have at least five members. 

a. In the case of a board of health created by a joint board of county 
commissioners, each county in the health district m ust have at least 
one representative on the board ;  each county of over fifteen 
thousand population must have an additional representative for each 
fifteen thousand popu lation or major fraction of that n um ber; and in a 
health district of fewer than five counties, each county must have at 
least one representative on the district board of hea lth , and the 
additional representatives selected to constitute the min imum 
five-member board must be equ itably apportioned among the 
counties on a populatran basis. 

b. I n  the case of a joint city-cou nty health district composed of only one 
county and having at least one city over fifteen thousand popu lation,  
each city having a popu lation over fifteen thousand must have a 
representative on the district board of health for each fifteen 
thousand population or major fraction of that number, and the 
remaining population of the county, exclusive of the popu lations of 
cities with more than fifteen thousand each, must have a 
representative on the district board of health for each fifteen 
thousand popu lation or major fraction of that n umber, or at least one 
member if the remaining popu lation is less than fifteen thousand. 

S ECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-35-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 .  Upon the adoption of a resolution, the govern ing body may form a single 
county, multicounty, er-a city-county, or tribal health district. 

S ECTION 5. AMENDM ENT. Section 23-35-06 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23-35-06. Health districts - Dissolution - Withd rawal.  

1 .  #Except for a tribal health d istrict, if a health district has been in operation 
for two years, the district may be dissolved as provided for u nder this 
section . If a petition is filed with the county auditor of each county of a 
health district which is signed by qual ified electors of that county equal  to 
ten percent or more of the votes cast in that county at the last general 
election ,  an election on the question of dissolution must be presented to 
the qual ified electors in each county in  the district at the next election 
held in each county in the district. If a majority of the votes cast on the 
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question in a majority of the counties favor d issolution , the health district 
is d issolved on the second January first following the election. If a 
majority of the votes cast on the question in a majority of the counties are 
against dissolution, no other election on this issue may be held for two 
years. 

2 .  If a health d istrict has been in operation for two years, any county may 
withdraw from the district as provided under this section. If a petition is 
filed with the withdrawing county's auditor which is signed by qual ified 
electors of the county equal to ten percent or more of the votes cast i n  
that county at the last general election , an  election on  the question of 
withdrawal must be presented to the qualified electors in the county at 
the next election in the county. If a majority of the votes cast on the 
question favor withdrawing from the district, the county is withdrawn from 
the district on the second January first following the election. If a majority 
of the votes cast on the question are against withdrawal, no other 
election on this issue may be held for two years. 

� A tribal health d istrict may be d issolved by the tribal cou ncil or govern ing 
body at any time. 

S ECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 23-35-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23-35-07. Health district fu nds. 

1 .  AExcept for a tribal health district, a district board of health shal l  prepare 
a budget for the next fiscal year at the time at which and i n  the manner in  
which a county budget is  adopted and shall submit this b udget to the joint 
board of county commissioners for approval. The amount budgeted and 
approved must be prorated in  health districts composed of more than one 
county among the various counties i n  the health district accord ing to the 
taxab le valuation of the respective counties in the health d istrict. For the 
purpose of this section, "prorated" means that each member county's 
contribution must be based on an equalized mill levy throughout the 
district, except as otherwise permitted under subsection 3 of section 
23-35-05. With in ten days after approval by the joint board of county 
commissioners, the d istrict board of health shall certify the budget to the 
respective county auditors and the budget must be included in  the levies 
of the counties. The budget may not exceed the amount that can be 
raised by a levy of five mi lls on the taxable valuation, subject to publ ic 
hearing in each county i n  the health d istrict at least fifteen days before an 
action taken by the joint board of county commissioners. Action taken by 
the joint board of county commissioners must be based on the record, 
including comments received at the public hearing. A levy u nder this 
section is not subject to the l im itation on the county tax levy for general 
and special county purposes. The amount derived by a levy under this 
section must be placed in the health district fund.  The health d istrict fund 
must be deposited with and disbursed by the treasurer of the district 
board of health. Each county in a health district quarterly shal l  remit and 
make settlements with the treasurer. Any funds remain ing in the fund at 
the end of any fiscal year may be carried over to the next fiscal year. 

2 .  +ABExcept for a tribal health d istrict, the district board of health, or the 
president and secretary of the board when authorized or delegated by 
the board, shall audit al l claims against the health district fund . The 
treasurer shall pay all claims from the health district fund. The district 
board of health shall approve or ratify al l  claims at the board's quarterly 
meetings. 
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S ECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 23-35-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

23-35-08. Boa rds of health - Powers and d uties. 

Except when in conflict with a local ordinance or a civil service ru le with in  a 
board of health's jurisdiction , or a tribal code, ordinance. or policy. each board of 
health : 

1 .  Shal l  keep records and make reports requ ired by the department. 

2 .  Sha l l  prepare and submit a public health un it budget. 

3. Shal l  audit, allow, and certify for payment expenses incurred by a board 
of health in carrying into effect this chapter. 

4 .  May accept and receive any contribution offered to aid in  the work of the 
board of health or public health un it. 

5 .  May make rules regarding any nuisance, source of filth , and any cause of 
sickness which are necessary for public health and safety. 

6 .  May establish by rule a schedule of reasonable fees that may be charged 
for services rendered. Services may not be withheld due to an inabi lity to 
pay any fees established under this subsection. If a tribal board of health 
establ ishes fees for services rendered, the fees may not exceed the 
h ighest corresponding fee of any of the public health un its that border the 
tribal public health un it. 

7. May make rules in a health district or county publ ic health department, as 
the case may be, and in the case of a city publ ic health department may 
recommend to the city's govern ing body ordinances for the protection of 
publ ic health and safety. 

8 .  May adopt confinement, decontamination, and san itary measures in  
compliance with chapter 23-07 .6 which are necessary when an infectious 
or contagious d isease exists. 

9. May make and enforce an order in a local matter if an emergency exists. 

1 0. May inquire into any nu isance, source of filth, or cause of sickness. 

1 1 .  Except in the case of an emergency, may conduct a search or seize 
material located on private property to ascertain the condition of the 
property as the condition relates to public health and safety as authorized 
by an administrative search warrant issued u nder chapter 29-29. 1 .  

1 2. May abate or remove any nu isance, source of fi lth, or cause of sickness 
when necessary to protect the public health and safety. 

1 3 .  May su pervise any matter relating to preservation of life and health of 
ind ividuals, including the supervision of any water supply and sewage 
system.  

1 4 .  May isolate, ki l l ,  o r  remove any an imal affected with a contagious o r  
infectious disease i f  the an imal poses a material risk to h uman health and 
safety. 

1 5. Shal l  appoint a local health officer. 
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1 6. May employ any person necessary to effectuate board rules and this 
chapter. 

1 7. If a public health unit is served by a part-time local health officer, the 
board of health may appoint an executive director. An executive director 
is subject to removal for cause by the board of health. The board of 
health may assign to the executive director the duties of the local health 
officer, and the executive director shal l  perform these duties under the 
d i rection of the local health officer. 

1 8 . May contract with any person to provide the services necessary to carry 
out the purposes of the board of health. 

1 9. Shall designate the location of a local health officer's office and shall 
furn ish the office with necessary equipment. 

20. May provide for personnel the board of health considers necessary. 

21 . Shal l  set the salary of the local health officer, the executive d irector, and 
any assistant local health officer and shal l  set the compensation of any 
other public health unit personnel .  

22. Shal l  pay for necessary travel of the local health officer, the local health 
officer's assistants, and other personnel in the manner and to the extent 
determined by the board ."  

Page 4 ,  remove l ines 30 and 31 

Page 5,  replace l ines 1 through 3 with : 

"SECTION 1 2. STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH REPORTS TO THE 
LEGISLATIVE MANAGEM ENT - TRI BAL PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT P ILOT 
PROJ ECT. During the 201 3- 14  interim,  the state department of health shall report 
semiannual ly to the legislative management on the status of the tribal  publ ic health 
un it pi lot project, including services provided , resources available, expenditures, and 
the future sustainabi l ity of the pi lot project. 

S ECTION 1 3 .  APPROPRIATION.  There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, t h e  s u m  of 
$700 ,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of 
health for the purposes of planning or establ ishing, or both , a regional pub lic health 
network, for the biennium beginn ing July 1 ,  2 0 1 3 ,  and ending June 30, 201 5. The 
department may not spend more than $250,000 for each reg ional publ ic health 
network."  

Ren u m ber accordingly 

SB 2030 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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Madame Chair, members of the committee: 

For the record ,  my name is Sheila Sandness and I am a Sen ior Fiscal Analyst for 

the Leg islative Counci l .  I am here to present information on  Senate B i l l  No .  2030 
relating to reg ional publ ic health networks. I appear neither for nor aga inst the b i l l ,  

but just to  provide information and answer any questions you may have. 

Last session the 201 1 - 1 3  executive recommendation for the State Department of 

Health in House B i l l  No. 1 004 included $275,000 of one-time fund ing from the 

general fund to establ ish jo int powers agreements to form another reg ional publ ic 

health un it during the 201 1 - 1 3  bienn ium.  In add ition , the executive recommendation 

included $2 .4 mi l l ion from the general fund for grants to local publ ic health un its. 

The 201 1 Leg islative Assembly i ncreased funding from the general fund for grants to 

local publ ic health un its by $600,000 to provide a total of $3 mi l l ion from the general 

fund ,  removed the one-time fund ing included in the executive budget to establ ish 

nether reg ional publ ic health network, and provided for a study of the reg ional 

publ ic health un it pi lot program that was conducted during the 2009-1 1 bienn ium .  

Section 8 of 201 1 House B i l l  No .  1 004 d irected a study which was to include an 

assessment of the reg ional publ ic health network pi lot project, i nclud ing services 

provided , effects of the project on participating local publ ic health un its, efficiencies 

ach ieved in provid ing services, cost-savings to state and local governments, and 

possible improvements to the program. Th is study was assigned to the interim 

Health Services Committee. 

The i nterim Health Services Committee received information regard ing the pi lot 

project summary, the effect on participating publ ic health un its ,  an evaluation of the 

pi lot project, and proposed changes to the reg ional publ ic health un it program. 

The interim Health Services Committee recommends Senate Bi l l  No.  2030 which 

ntinues the regional publ ic health program, but amends Chapter 23-35. 1 relating 

to regional publ ic health networks. The b i l l  removes the requ i rement that 
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·cipating local publ ic health un its share admin istrative functions, provides that 

ny jo int powers agreement include core activities rather than specific types of 

services, and includes outcome measures for the reg ional publ ic health network 

program.  The b i l l  appropriates $4 mi l l ion from the general fund to the State 

Department of Health to establ ish , admin ister, and operate regional publ ic health 

networks in the state. 

The Health Services Committee's fi ndings and recommendation regard ing 

regional pub l ic health networks can be found in the .. Report of the North Dakota 

Leg islative Management . . .  

The executive recommendation for the State Department of Health does not 

provide for regional publ ic health networks. 

That concludes my testimony and I would be happy to answer any questions you 

ay have. 



Test imony 
Sen ate H u m an Services Com m ittee 

Sen ate Bi l l  2030 
Tuesday, J a n u a ry 22, 20 1 3  

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Chairperson Lee and members of the Human Services Committee. 
My name is  Kelly Nagel, and I am the publ ic health liaison for the North Dakota 
Department of Health. I am here to provide background information on the local 
public health system and information on the proposed amendments in SB 2030 
relating to Regional Public Health Networks. 

Background 
North Dakota' s  public health system is decentral ized with 28 independent local 
public health units working in partnership with the state health department. The 28 
local public health units are organized into single or multi-county health districts, 
city/county health departments or city/county health districts. Seventy-five percent 
of the local health units serve single county, city or combined city/county 
jurisdictions, whi le the other 25 percent serve multi-county juri sdictions. The 
western part of the state consists of multi-county health districts, whereas the 
eastern part of the state consists mostly of single county health districts and 
departments .  There are three city health departments in the state: Bismarck, Fargo 
and Grand Forks. (map attached) 

In this decentralized approach, the units are required to meet state standards and 
fol low state laws and regulations, but they can exercise their own powers and have 
administrative authority to make decisions to meet their local needs, and therefore 
determine their own service area or jurisdiction. 

According to the National Association of County and City Health Officials 
National Profile of Local Health Departments, 54 percent of North Dakota' s  local 
publ ic health units serve a population of less than 1 0,000 . These health units have 
an average of 3 FTE ( 1 .5 FTE being a nurse), and an average annual budget or 
expenditures of $ 1 1 5 ,000. The profile survey al so indicated that 34 percent of the 
total annual revenue sources for all North Dakota local public health units is from 
local government; 28 percent is  federal pass through; 9 percent is state direct, with 
only 5 percent from state aid; 1 percent is  direct from Medicare and Medicaid ; and 
24 percent is from fees and other sources . As a result of the various structures, and 
because funding sources and amounts differ for local public health units, there is a 



wide variety in  the levels of services they provide and in their capacity to provide 
comprehens ive services. 

A regional infrastructure was establ i shed for emergency preparedness and response 
to amass the resources necessary to meet new public health chal lenges and to 
provide additional capacity throughout the state, especially in the smal ler health 
units. A lead local public health unit has been identified for emergency 
preparedness and response in each of the eight regions of the state. Each of these 
units has employed a public health emergency preparedness and response 
coordinator, a public information officer and an environmental health practitioner, 
al l of whom provide services to the region. Funding for these efforts is provided 
through the federal emergency preparedness and response grant. The North Dakota 
Department of Health also remotely staffs seven epidemiologists who provide 
services to the regions regarding disease-related i ssues and five environmental 
health practitioners who inspect food and lodging facilities. 

The lead publ ic health units receive $50,000 a biennium to provide environmental 
health services within their region. For most of the lead health units, this amount of 
funding has not been adequate to cover the actual cost of travel and delivery of 
services throughout the region. Most are supplementing the costs of services 
through fees for l icensing and inspecting facil it ies, contributions charged to other 
health units in the region, local government revenue, and state aid payments .  

SB 2030 Amendments Relating to Public Health Regional Networks 
The North Dakota Association of City and County Health Officials (SACCHO) 
selected representatives to serve on a task force to develop recommendations for 
amendments to NDCC 23-35 . 1 Regional Public Health Networks. 

The general theme around the task force recommendations is to have the statute 
language more permissive than prescriptive. The recommendations al ign wel l with 
national research findings. The National Association of City and County Health 
Officials compilation of research findings relating to regionalization indicated the 
fol lowing abbreviated summary of benefits to regional ization and structural 
considerations. 

Benefits: 
• The two most commonly accepted reasons for regional ization are that it 

results in improved efficiency and economies of scale. 
• Multi-county and regional local health departments provide a more 

comprehensive set of services than smaller departments. 



• Al lows heal th departments to pool resou rces to meet the demands of 
research and evidence-based pract i ces. 

Structu ring  
• Experiences from regionalized health departments have revealed that 

commonalities should be considered when deciding the geographic area of a 
regiOn. 

• Other considerations for a viable region should be based on: 
o Sound operational principles. 
o Ability to integrate. 
o Ability to provide equitable services and access. 
o Population demographics. 
o Resource availabil i ty. 

The establ ishment and requirements of the Regional Public Health Networks were 
modeled after the Regional Educational Association (REA). REAs receive student 
foundation aid funding or state aid for each participating school district, which has 
been the most valuable asset in allowing for about 90 percent of North Dakota ' s  
student population t o  b e  covered by an REA. There were changes made t o  the 
statute defining REAs in the 20 1 1 legislation. The l ist of potential administrative 
functions and student services was removed, as well as the required number of 
shared services and functions. Required services and functions were replaced with 
five key focus areas or core services. Like the REAs, the Regional Network Pilot 
Proj ect conducted in 20 1 0  by the Southeast Central local public health unit region 
(Jamestown area) also experienced difficulty in distinguishing between 
administrative functions and services. Therefore, the task force proposes to remove 
the l ists and allow for flexibil ity, but yet some standardization, by requiring 
networks to create a work plan that includes activities around the core publ ic health 
activities identified by a national steering committee for "Public Health  in 
America." The core activities include: 1 )  Prevent epidemics and spread of disease; 
2) Protect against environmental hazards; 3) Prevent injuries; 4) Promote heal th 
behaviors; 5)  Respond to disasters; and 6) Assure the quality and accessibility of 
health services. I dentified work plan activities should also meet the community 
needs or reflect a community health assessment. 

Another recommendation is to remove the requi rement for the network to 
correspond to one of the Emergency Preparedness and Response (EPR) regions. 
The defined geographical boundaries prohibit health units with an existing working 
relationship to form a network. For exampl e, Caval ier County Publ ic Health may 



work closely with Wa lsh County Public Health and have commonal ities, but 
cu rrent statute wou ld  not a l l ov·/ the two to pa 11 i c i pate in the same network.  The task 
force proposes that n tworks serve a m i n i mum population of 1 5 ,000 or comprise at 
l east three local pu b l i c  heal th u n i ts .  

The final  recommendation is to remove the requirement for the network to have a 
regional network health officer. The authority of the regional health officer is  not 
clear with statute requiring that there also be a local health officer with specific 
authority and responsibi l ities for each local public health unit jurisdiction. 

The Southeast local publ ic health region is  currently undergoing a three-year 
regional network pi lot project funded by the Bush Foundation. The coll aborative i s  
beginning year two of  the project. Local publ ic health units included in  the 
southeast collaborative are the lead health unit, Fargo Cass Public Health; and the 
single county hea lth units, Ransom County, Richland County, Sargent County, 
Steele County and Trai l l  District. 

The Southeast col laborative project is specifically focused on improving 
capabil ities and capacity to provide more consistent environmental health services 
throughout the region; effectively implementing and util izing electronic health 
records for population-based services; and preparing for National Public Health 
Accreditation. 

Southeast col l aborative partners bel ieve that shared capacity in  environmental 
health wi l l  be sustained by the adoption of ordinances throughout the region, which 
wi l l  resul t  in a requirement for additional inspections and fee col lections. 
Accreditation can be achieved and sustained by sharing capacity to prepare for 
accreditation and through a joint appl ication. The joint appl ication option wi l l  save 
the six l ocal public health units a total of $63,600. Collaboratively preparing and 
applying for accreditation not only has financial and staff efficiencies, it has also 
made accreditation more realistic for smaller health units to achieve. Finally, the 
e lectronic heal th records wi l l  result in staff efficiencies and better data collection 
and analysis, which wi l l  better position the col laborative for other funding sources . 

This project wi l l  provide additional evidence that formal collaborations wi l l  
strengthen local publ ic health infrastructure, more efficiently use l imited funding 
and staff, and provide more equitable access to qual ity public health services for 
people in a l l  counties of North Dakota. 

This concludes my testimony. I am happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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H uman Services Comm ittee 
Senate Bi l l  2030 

January 22, 201 3 
R uth Bachmeier, Fargo Cass Pu bl ic Health 

Good Morning Chairperson Lee , and members of the committee.  My name is Ruth 

Bachmeier, and I am the Director at Fargo Cass Publ ic Health . I am here today to 

provide comment on the benefits of the regional publ ic health network in the southeast 

corner of North Dakota. As Kelly mentioned , local pub lic health un its in the southeast 

area a re involved in a 3 year  grant funded by the Bush Foundation. This area includes 

the counties of Cass, Ransom, Rich land ,  Sargent, Steel and Trai l ! .  We are al l  

independent single county health un its who have chosen to work together to address 

the publ ic health needs of our communities. 

I would l ike to share some h ighl ights of the fi rst year of our Collaborative and some 

lessons learned th rough this experience. First, we have chosen to formal ly cal l this 

group the Southeast North Dakota Public Health Col laborative . We intentionally d id not 

use the word Regional or Regionalization in our new name as our individual health 

departments wi l l  remain independent entities in contrast to how publ ic health is 

structu red regional ly in other parts of the state . As outlined in statute , we have 

developed a d raft Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) that describes our collaborative and 

the work that is p roposed . The cu rrent focus is on three areas; addressing 

environmental health capacity, transition to electronic health records ,  and preparation 

for N ational Public Health Accreditation. 



I have learned many important lessons this past year through our work as a 

col laborative; the fi rst is that collaboration at this level is hard work and t ime consuming.  

This is not to dimin ish what I truly bel ieve wi l l  be g reat benefits for our col laborative in  

the long term,  but rather to h igh l ight the importance of funding for in itiatives such as 

these. Our  Col laborative has met every 2 weeks throughout the past year in order  to 

keep in l ine with pre-establ ished objectives. 

Secondly, I have learned that local public health un its are all d ifferent in their  ind ividual 

capabi l it ies and yet we have common goals for our communities. By strategically 

p lanning for program development, capital izing on avai lable resources, and provid ing 

the evaluation and data to support our work, the entire collaborative, and most 

importantly the residents of our communities wi l l  benefit from improved core public 

health functions. 

Lastly, I h ave learned that work of this nature does not happen qu ickly. We are 

fortunate to currently have the support of the Bush Foundation grant; however it is 

certainly my desire and the desire of the Southeast North Dakota Publ ic Health 

Col laborative to continue our work to provide efficient and effective public health 

services to our communities wel l  after the grant funding is exhausted . This important 

bi l l  would provide financial resou rces to allow such work to continue. 

This concludes my testimony. Thank you for you r  consideration of this important b i l l .  

would be happy to answer any questions. 



Senate Bil l  2030 
H u m a n  Services Comm ittee 

January 22, 2013 
Wanda Kratochvil, Walsh County Health District 

Good morning, Senator J udy Lee a n d  m e m bers of the Human Services Com m ittee .  I am Wanda 

Kratochvi l ,  Adm i nistrator for Wa lsh County Hea lth D istrict i n  G rafton.  I 'm h ere today to s u pport SB 2030 

and to d iscuss the pote ntial  be nefits of the regional  publ ic  hea lth n etwork fu n d i n g  for Walsh County 

Hea lth District. We a re a s m a l l  health u n it, comprised of 4.5 FTE staff. (Our staff i ncludes 2 .5  R N s, 1 

LPN, a n d  1 WIC N utrition ist) . The population of Walsh Cou nty is j ust u nd � r  12,000, inc lud ing 13 towns 

and 3 u n i n co rporated com m u nities.  

As a smal l  hea lth u n it, we recogn ize that we a re not able to provide the same level of services that a re 

ava i la b l e  i n  the larger regional  health u n its in our state; however there a re core p u b l ic health a ctivities, 

such a s  e nvironme nta l health services, that a re essential to assure the safety a n d  wel l being of o u r  

county residents. W i t h  l i m ited staffi n g  we need t o  l o o k  a t  a lternative ways t o  assure we have the 

capa city to serve o u r  county residents . SB2030 provides a method for us to bui ld  i nfrastructure a nd 

develop that ca pacity without dup l icating services a nd h i ring positi ons  that we c a n not afford. Cu rrently 

Walsh Co u nty Health District receives environmenta l health services as fol lows: 

• State Health Department:  Food, Lodgi ng, Ta n ni ng beds, Tattoo Pa rlors 

• Regional  E H P  Se rvices from G ra nd Fo rks: Pool i nspections, Nu isa nce, M o ld,  and Sa nitat ion 

The s e rvices from the regional  EHP have been very helpful, but  they have a lso i d e ntified a need fo r 

capacity b u i l d i ng beyond what current funding is able to even consider.  The regi o n a l  p u bl i c  hea lth 

network funding wou l d  a ssist us in at  least meeting m i n i m u m  environmental hea lth services. 



One othe r  a rea that our  hea lth d istrict struggles with is the need to put i nto place electronic  hea lth 

records ( E H R ) .  E H Rs have the ab i l ity to strea m l i ne office p rocedures, ass ist with health data retr ieval  

and transfe r, and p rovide a system for more comprehe n sive services that ca n result  i n  better c l i e nt care .  

W e  would c o n s i d e r  uti l iz i ng regional  hea lth networks to he lp  us deve lop a n  E H R  system for o u r  agency. 

The re is c u r rently an info rmal  network of public health agencies that exists for this ve ry purpose . 

However, t h e  health u n its a re struggl ing with the enormity of putt ing s uch a system i n  p lace. O nce we 

wo u l d  have a n  E H R  in p lace we co u ld  begi n to address a co m p rehe nsive b i l l i ng system a n d  integration 

with oth e r  e lectron ic  medical  systems within the state inc lud ing NDI IS (the i m m u n ization registry) . 

Regiona l  p u b l ic  health network fu nding is a good t h i ng for s m a l l  pub l ic  health u n its. We could be m o re 

effic ie nt, a ccompl i sh  tasks beyo nd o u r  c u rrent ab i l ity, a n d  better serve o u r  cou nty res idents. Th a n k  you 

fo r hea ri n g  a bo ut pote nti a l  uses for this funding. 
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Good morning Chairman Lee and members of the committee. I am Lisa Clute, Executive 
Officer of First District Health Unit. First District provides local public health services to 
Bottineau, Burke, McHenry, McLean, Renville, Sheridan, and Ward counties. 

First District Health Unit has been challenged this past biennium with an unprecedented flood 
and population growth brought on by the oil development. Upper Missouri Health Unit and 
Southwest Health Unit are also addressing these challenges that First District Health Unit is 
faced with such as: 

• public waste water and drinking water facilities nearing or exceeding capacity, 
• increased number of private water inspections, 
• rocketing demand for on-site septic systems, 
• regulating the increased number of lodging and food facilities, 
• recruiting and retaining a public health work force, 
• substantial increase in sexually transmitted diseases. 
• increased mental and emotional health issues 

Senate Bill 2030 will provide the necessary resources to develop the expertise and capability 
needed to respond to our changing communities. Funds would be utilized to train sewer 
contractors, train and license the additional staff to address sewer applications, train developers 
on local codes and regulations, chaplaincy emotional health training, public education on 
sexually transmitted diseases, and a development of uniform regulation standards. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important bill .  I would be happy to answer any 
questions you may have. 



Regional Public Health Networks 

Benefits to loca l Health Departments 

from N O  Local Public Health Administrators 
January 22, 2013 

• Brenda Stallman, Trail/ District Health Unit, Hillsboro- To be fisca l ly responsible, a publ ic 

health department cannot possib ly provide every type of service as perceived as a need by each 

citizen.  What a funded regiona l network cou ld  do is e l iminate the si lo effect of trying to address 

a l l  requests for services by a l l  citizens and a l low us to work on bigger outcomes in popu lation 

hea lth that would provide a larger benefit for the investment. Every area of the state is short of 

environmenta l hea lth workers. A regional approach would reduce admin istrative costs and 

a l low for broader assessment and del ivery of  services. Tra in ing and response to environmental 

and other publ ic hea lth issues would be stream-l ined.  Assurance of service del ivery does not 

a lways mea n providing the service itself, but through a regiona l  network, it may be easier and 

more cost effective to p rovide access through another department with in a region. 

• Wanda Kratochvil, Walsh County Health District, Grafton - Loca l pub l ic health un its a re very 

i ndividua l ized in what types of services they are ab le to offer, many times focusing on a reas of 

health ca re that a re not provided by other health ca re agencies within their community. This 

makes each publ ic  health un it very un ique in what they offer to the community. Regional 

networks for publ ic health offer the ab i l ity to provide necessa ry services {environmenta l hea lth, 

home visiting, etc. )  in a coordinated manner thus saving money through the pool ing of hard to 

recru it professiona ls. Networks have the potentia l of decreasing the dupl ication of efforts that 

may occur as we develop programs and set up pol icies and procedures. 



• Ruth Bachmeier, Fargo Cass Public Health, Fargo- The desire of the Southeast North Dakota 

Publ ic  H ealth Col laborative is to provide efficient and effective publ ic hea lth services to our 

commun ities. SB 2030 is an i mportant bi l l  that would a l low this type of col laborative work to 

continue. 

• Jeanne Chaput, Pembina County Public Health, Cavalier- Regional health network services 

have proven to be beneficial to the state, the publ ic health un its and the people we serve. For 

the past seven years we have uti l ized a regional Environmenta l Hea lth Inspector for 

nuisance/health hazard comp la ints, inspections, and genera l publ ic safety consultations. 

These services have provided consistent enforcement of regu lations for hea lth standards and 

envi ronmental concerns with in the northeast region (Gra nd Forks, Wa lsh, Ne lson, Griggs and 

Pembina counties) .  Regional  Pub l i c  Hea lth Networks would make i t  possible to  fu rther 

strengthen this col laboration among neighboring counties. 

• Javayne Oyloe, Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston- Regional  Pub l ic  Hea lth 

Networks wou ld provide an  opportunity to strengthen capacity for publ ic  health accreditation, 

Environmental Hea lth ( inc lud ing tra in ing, such as septic insta l le r  tra in ing by partnering with 

F irst District Hea lth Un it) and publ ic  health nursing via shared nursing staff. 

• Karen Volk, Wells County District Health Unit, Harvey- Having a lead agency to rely on has 

been very va luab le when in need of expertise with bu i lding a new b i l l i ng system, saving t ime 

and providing cleaner data . Karen recommends this to a l l  s ingle health departments as a way to 

upgrade computer systems & bring smal ler agencies up to a more p rofessional leve l .  

• Bev Voller, Emmons County Public Health, Linton- I n  home nursing care i s  a very much needed 

nursing se rvice in Emmons County due to the la rge amount of e lderly l iving in their homes. 
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Frequently, we must t ravel to d istant corners of the county for one in-home cl ient consuming 

most of our time in t ravel. This c l ient may be just a few mi les from another publ ic  hea lth dept., 

but not in  their county. Through the regional network, an agreement to provide in-home 

nursing services to th is c l ient by another county publ ic health dept. cou ld  be made, thus saving 

va luab le t ime and mi leage expenses. 

• Keith Johnson, Custer Health, Mandan- Custer Hea lth, a five county health un it based i n  

Mandan, has  severa l  in itiatives ready to  go that would assist in meeting community needs 

when regiona l  fund ing becomes ava i lab le :  

1.  We supply EH services to rura l  Bu rleigh, Emmons and Kidder Counties. These programs 

a re in their  fundamental stages, stymied by l imitations on t ime and fund ing. We need 

to get subdivision p lanning put in  place around the lakes in Kidder, munic ipal  nu isance 

ord inances in  the smal l  towns in every county, and regu lations passed on sewage 

systems, swimming pools, and tattoo parlors in every jurisd iction. 

2.  School nu rsing is  a service that we would market to the schools that want more nursing 

service . Immed iate payback would be in the a reas of decreased absenteeism, med 

admin istration for students, hea lth cu rricu lum development, and i nput on Individua l  

Education P lans for students for whom hea lth is a learning parameter. 

3 .  Incorporation of  our  e lectronic records into the NDH IN system. 
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• Robin lszler, Central Valley Health District, Jamestown and Napoleon- Centra l 

Va l ley and their partners accomplished many improvements to the local publ ic health system in 

2010 with fund ing from the p revious regional network b i l l .  During the p i lot project many of the 

enhancements made to local health departments in  the SE centra l region sti l l  remain  in  

existence today proving that loca l agencies made good investments to improve PH servies. SB 

2030 wil l  a l low CVH D  and others to improve services and focus on community hea lth 

needs that a re specific to each ind ividua l  a rea as our communities have identified health needs 

in our 2012 Community Hea lth Assessment and Health Improvement Plans.  

• Barb Frydenlund, Rolette County Public Health District, Rolla-

Each publ ic hea lth unit with in  N D  del ivers very unique services. The services del ivered a re often 

funding driven, meaning if funding is avai lab le for a specific program, then that program is 

i mplemented. The programs too often do not fu l ly represent the needs of the community. This 

lack of programming is typica l ly re lated to lack of ava i lab le funding to loca l publ ic health. The 

establ ishment of a Regional  Network could a l low for structured sharing of 

services/programming. Two examples of programming through a Regional Network that our 

residents could benefit from a re environmental health services and fami ly p lann ing. 

Currently, we receive envi ronmental health services from Lake Region Publ ic Hea lth through 

state aid fund ing a l located to Lake Region to provide environmenta l services to a reas with in the 

region not otherwise receiving environmenta l health services. This funding is l im ited to 

$25,000.00 per year. Rolette County could greatly benefit with increased environmenta l health 

services, so that we could enhance and have a proactive approach to envi ronmenta l health 

issues. Currently due to very l im ited fund ing and staff time much of our environmenta l health 
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service is reactive. Fami ly P lann ing services a re a much needed and frequently requested by 

our county residents. To date we have been unable to acqu i re funding for family p lanning 

services and have been cited the reason as lack of funding and funding for fami ly planning with 

in  ND was a l located prior to the estab l ishment of Rolette County Publ ic Hea lth in  2001. The 

concept of the Regiona l  Network sharing could a l low for Fam i ly P lann ing services to be 

provided in a h igh needs a rea .  Each hea lth d istrict/unit is un ique in the services provided and 

each county is un ique in the a rea of  health needs, services desired and in its cu lture. A regiona l  

health network for pub l ic health can provide services that can be  shared thus increasing 

ava i lab i l ity and decreasing fisca l overhead. Existing health d istricts/units must ma inta in  

autonomy, support/buy in from loca l residents, and the  culture of the  county must be  

preserved. 
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Testimony Senate Bill 2030 

Thursday, January 3 1 ,  20 1 3  

Good Morning, Chairman Senator Ray Holmberg and members of the Senate 

Appropriations committee, my name is Robin Iszler, Administrator at Central Valley 

Health District. I am here today to tel l  you a little history and highlight the benefits of 

the SE Central Regional PH network pilot that was funded in 2009. At that time 

$275,000 was appropriated for a regional network pilot through SB 2333 .  On July 1 ,  

20 1 0, a contract was awarded from the State Health Department to Central Valley Health 

District and their partners: City County Health District- Valley City, Wells County 

District Health Unit- Fessenden and LaMoure County District Health Unit - LaMoure. 

Some of the work that was completed as a group during the one year network include: 

Computer based time recording system (TIMS) for standardized employee time 

reporting, Computerized billing system (Ahlers) which allowed for scheduling, billing 

and data collection of services provided at the local public health offices, standardized 

policies and sharing of policies among the health departments, community health 

assessment which helped identify local needs, training to nurses on a chronic disease 

management, expanded family planning services to the smaller communities, and 

increasing environmental health services to the counties. 

As a lead agency Central Valley Health District learned that we have an obl igation to make 

sure that members of a smaller health department continue to have a voice in the decision­

making process when entering a regional network. Some ways we shared authority was 

through clear communication like having an organizational chart and job description to 

clarify roles. For example - if you hire someone to work for a regional network - who do 

they report to, who can fire them or if a nurse from one agency is doing work in another 
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• agency who does that nurse report to? In addition to the benefit of strengthened 

relationships among the health departments in the southeast central network pilot there 

were financial benefits (or "bang for the buck") as well .  Specifically, our network pilot 

purchased an electronic billing system for the three health departments and added a 

clearinghouse feature that reduced clerical staff time by over 90%. The total cost to our 

network pilot for these components was $5,533, which is $ 1 47 less than what one 

neighboring health department paid in 20 1 2  for the same system with comparable 

functionality. 

• 

The work that was completed by our network, has been shared with members of the 

Health Service Committee (chaired by Judy Lee) and detailed in a report by an external 

evaluator (copy of the final report is attached). The North Dakota Association of City 

and County Health Officials (SACCHO) (local public health administrators) selected a 

group of representative members to serve on a task force, as recommended by the interim 

committee, to develop recommendations for amendments to CC 23-35 . 1  Regional Public 

Health Networks. The general theme around the task force recommendations is to have 

the statute language more permissive than prescriptive. These amendments are based on 

feedback from our regional network pilot, the interim committee and comments from the 

task force members. 

SB 2030 includes an appropriation of 4 million dollars to assure that all of the 

population of North Dakota will be covered by regional networks. Additionally, it will 

allow for continued improvements to the local public health departments here in North 

Dakota by encouraging regional capacity building, increased efficiency and shared 

• services (much like the educational REA's) .  
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The previous regional network did provide improvements for Central Valley Health 

District and their partners. We operating today with many of the improvements realized 

through the regional network pilot. We are excited about new opportunities that may result 

from SB 2030. I hope you will support SB 2030. I would be happy to try to answer any 

questions you may have. Thank you. 
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Testimony - ND Senate Appropriations Committee 
1131113  
Theresa Will, RN, Director 
City-County Health District-Valley City 

Good morning, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations 

Committee. My name is Theresa Will and I am the Director at City-County Health District 

(CCHD) in Valley City. Our agency provides public health services for the citizens of Barnes 

County. In 2009, we were fortunate to be a participant in the Southeast Central Regional Public 

Health Network Pilot and look forward to the prospect of continuing such work in the future. 

The regional network pilot enabled us to make major progress in improving our billing 

practices and making in-office processes more efficient. By implementing a computerized 

system, we are able to bill for services electronically as well as generate service utilization 

statistics quickly and accurately, no longer using paper logs and paper receipts to gain this 

information. As a result, billing has become increasingly faster and more accurate. After the 

network project was completed we estimated that our billing efficiency savings alone, for the 

project period was over $6,000. 

Throughout our network pilot project we shared policies, worked on various grant 

applications jointly and also gathered and compiled health-related data for our region (one of the 

first steps to prepare for public health accreditation). Recently, Barnes County partners gathered 

and completed our Community Health Assessment which was initiated by this pilot. Our focus 

areas for needed improvement (Community Health Improvement Plan) are: 

1 .  Prevention of Chronic Disease 

2. Violence Prevention which includes suicide prevention, neglect, abuse, etc. 

3. Improving access for mental health services and substance abuse prevention 
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These are all HUGE issues that have and will require a great deal of on-going public 

health effort, working on policy and systems changes on the local level as well as at the state 

level. They are all issues that cannot be tackled alone; we will need to work with our 

surrounding public health partners if we hope to effect any change in these areas which our 

community has identified for improvement. All of these focus areas tie back to Key Public 

Health Activities that are supported by this bill :  "Prevent injuries," "Promote and encourage 

healthy behaviors," and "Assure the quality and accessibility of health services." 

Like any business in today' s world, we need to "work smarter" as we provide services 

and be more efficient with the staff that we employ. By working more closely with our peers (via 

regional networks), we can continue to improve efficiencies at the local public health level. 

Overall, our regional network pilot provided an opportunity for our health departments to 

improve the way we serve our communities, achieve some standardization in services where 

possible and assist in preparation for public health accreditation. 

As a small local public health unit, I realize that there are many efficiencies that can be 

gained by working collaboratively with other health units and I appreciate the opportunity that 

this legislation allows. I hope you wil l  support SB 2030 because it will help public health gain a 

better capacity to improve health in our communities. Thank you for the opportunity to visit 

with you today. I would be happy to answer any questions you may have . 



Final Evaluation Report: Southeast Central Regional Public Health Network Pilot Project 

June 3 0, 201 1 

Mona P. Klose, MS, RN, CPHQ 

Introduction 

The Southeast Central Regional Network Pilot (SECRN) project was a collaborative between Central 
Valley Health District (CVHD)-the grant administrator, City-County Health District, LaMoure County 
Public Health Department and Wells County District Health Unit. A collaboration describes efforts of 
people or organizations working together to achieve a common goal that could not be done with 
individual efforts. (Strieter & Blalick, 2006) The collaborative formed to increase capabilities, create 
consistency and realize efficiencies with respect to administrative (capacity building) functions - billing, 
standard policies, community health assessment and public health accreditation; public health services -
family planning, chronic disease management (CDM), sexual assault response team (SART) and 
immunizations. The functions selected for the project were chosen because participants determined they 
were capacity-building activities; services selected for the project were identified according to county 
health profile information in addition to being existing services that had potential to be expanded within 
the pilot area. For the purposes of this report, efficiencies are defined as steps or practices that generated 
new revenue and those which demonstrated time/cost savings (interchangeable) realized by identification 
of avoidable costs. The final evaluation report includes findings from all pilot agencies gathered utilizing 
personal interviews and online survey monkey which will be presented in general discussion, 
administrative function efficiencies, public health services, fiscal revenues, benefits and challenges, 
succession planning and implications for future regionalization of public health services. 

General Discussion: 

Funds for the regionalization project were received in July 20 1 0, one year later than expected, with a 
completion date for the project of June 30, 20 1 1 .  This 'fast track' time period of less than 2 years as 
planned for organization, relationship building, as well as implementation and training must be 
considered. Staff at the grant holding agency should be commended for their efforts to provide service to 
the 3 affiliating collaborative agencies over and above already existing duties. The affiliating agencies 
should also be commended for the addition to regular provision of services to implement this system. 
Evaluation data presented includes primarily qualitative data, as the short time period makes it extremely 
difficult to produce reliable quantitative data. The data presented in this report identify the following: 

where efficiencies were gained (+), where efficiencies were not gained (-) and where efficiencies may be 
gained by a change in approach (*) - please see categorization in the table on page 2, where N/A denotes 
not applicable. 
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Change in 

Efficiency Function or Efficiency Efficiency Not Approach 

Type: Service: Gained (+) Gained (-) Necessary (*) 

Capacity Time Information 
Building Management + N/A * 

System (TIMS) Time Savings Env Health IMS 
Capacity + 

Building Single Client Chart Time Savings N/A NIA 
Capacity Billing System + 

Building (Ahlers) Cost Savings N/A N/A 

Capacity Standardized + 

Building Policies Time Savings N/A N/A 

Capacity Community Health + 

Building Assessment (CHA) Cost Savings NIA NIA 

Service Sharing Family + - * 

Planning Cost Savings Gas Cards 

Service Sharing Chronic Disease + N/A * 

Management Time Savings B illable Service 
Service Sharing Sexual Assault 

Response Team NIA - NIA 
(SART) 

Service Sharing Immunizations N/A - N/A 

Capacity (Administrative) Functions - Efficiency Detail: 

• Time Information Management System (TIMS): TIMS is a web-based time recording system 
that offers report functionality. It is particularly useful for payroll and fiscal purposes in that 
manual tabulation is m inimized and hours by cost center (program) can be tracked in summary or 
detail formats. TIMS also useful for completing request for reimbursement reports where 

personnel and fringe costs are listed. Additionally, TIMS is used to track statistics such as 
number served when providing immunizations, number of participants receiving health education 
and county served for regional programs. As a web-based system, TIMS is accessible anywhere 
there is internet connectivity and requires virtually no annual maintenance. By utilizing TIMS as 
a time recording tool, end users involved in payroll and fiscal-related activities reduce time spent 
by about half compared to manual processes. 
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When TIMS is used for statistical purposes, such as for state aid reports identifying skilled 
nursing services, results are instantaneous. Although tracking time by county is possible with 
TIMS, more detail is needed with respect to the provision of Environmental Health Services so 
that counties readi ly know the status of work in their particular area. Central Valley Health 
District staff implemented an Excel-based tracking method previously used by Fargo-Cass public 
health to record such work, however an information management system with inspection 
documentation capability is needed to fully maximize provision of regional environmental health 
services. 

The online survey of administrative support personnel (N=3) provided the fol lowing data: 

• Client Charts : Client charts were condensed into one chart with uniform forms and tabs. 
1 00% reported utilizing 1 chart per client for services and inactive charts are separated from 
active charts. Utilization of one client chart resulted in minimizing time spent (at least 1 minute 
per client = $3,2 1 8 .00) checking several different places to obtain the desired client information 
and expedited the process of checking in for client visits/appointments. By utilizing the Ahlers 
system, clients are identified by a chart number, which also enhances confidentiality and HIP AA 
compliance. 

• Ahlers Billing System: 

o 1 00% reported NOT utilizing the appointment scheduler. 
* * One respondent reported inadequate time to learn and use the system, no comments 

from the others. 

o 66.6% reported 1 00% of client demographic and insurance information is entered into the 

system, 3 3 .3% reported 50% of their client demographics and 25% of their client 
insurance information is entered into the system. 
**Respondents reported this information is entered at the time of the encounter. Note 

one health department reported the volume of 3300 charts to update. 

o 33 .3% reported services are entered into Ahlers at the time of the client encounter, 66.6% 
reported entering at a different time. 

o 1 00% reported nurses are NOT filling out the billing/charge sheet at the time of the client 
encounter 

· o 33 .3% reported front desk and billing staff enter the billing/charge sheet information 
completed by the nurse at the time of the client encounter, 66.6% reported no. 
**Respondents reported nurses have difficulty remembering to fill out forms or are not 
filling them out timely, charge/billing slips are not being used at all, and slips are fill out 
when nurse returns from the field. These findings indicate process issues among staff 

at the health departments which need to be corrected in order for full efficiency 

potential to be met. 
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o 66.6% reported entering client payments at the time of receipt and printing receipt for 
client from Ahlers, 33 .3% do not. 
* *Respondent reported entered at the time billing sheet is entered, and hand written 
receipts continue to be used. One respondent would like itemized receipts for their 
clients, however this is not possible with the Ahlers system. 

o 1 00% reported utilizing Zirmed (claims clearinghouse) to process insurance claims - cost 
savings identified by using Ahlers and converting to Zirmed is approximately $ 1 2,208.00 
(time spent reduced from 98.5 minutes to 6 minutes, or 16 times less). 

o 66.6% are entering insurance payments into Ahlers at the time they are received, running 
monthly reconciliation reports for clients and insurance and using worksheets from 
CVHD for monthly reconciliation, 33 .3% are not 
**one agency has not fully implemented---just beginning lack of time to commit and 
learning curve identified as problematic 

o 33 .3% reported using the procedure code report to identify service statistics, 66.6% are 
not. 

o 33 .3% reported using Ahlers reports to complete AAR chart audits, 66.6% are not 
** The respondent utilizing Ahlers noted time savings from approximately 60 minutes to 
5- 1 0  minutes in the process, and hoping to also use it for program evaluations and to 
figure actual cost of services. Respondents not using the system to the fullest note lack of 
knowledge. 

o 1 00% reported no longer using manual processes for statistical purposes; however they 
are not using Ahlers for mailings. 

o 66.6% reported implementing the sliding fee scale and providing education to clients 
regarding it, 3 3 .3% have not. 

This data collected indicates a positive response for implementation of the Ahlers system with 
efficiencies gained. Additional time to fully learn and utilize the potential of the system is 
needed. Processes within agencies need to continue to be modified and reinforced to assist in the 
full use of the system. Overall, the implementation of the Ahlers billing system has reduced staff 
time resulting in cost savings. Additionally, the Ahlers system has provided a mechanism for 
participating health departments to track outstanding balances, payments, generate 
service-related statistics, and more accurately identify revenue. 

Cost Savings, Revenue and Return on Investment: 

The SECRN was successful in cost savings and efficiencies in several areas. The largest cost savings 
(70 %) was on the implementation of the Ahlers system as a network for the collaborative agencies. 
Proceeding in this manner saved roughly $ 1 5,000 in software costs versus implementing each agency as 
its own entity. 
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# of Rate per Network Total 
Cost Per  User users Reg cost addl  user cost savings 

C ity-County 2400 3 7200 733.33 2,200 5,000 
Wells 2400 2 4800 733.33 1,467 3,333 
La Moure 2400 2 4800 733.33 1,467 3,333 
CVHD 2400 � 4800 733.33 1,466 3,334 

$21,600 $6,600 $15,000 

Implementing the Ahlers billing system has made to it possible for these sites to function more like a 
business and in one particular case resulted in establishing a revenue stream of at least $ 1 0,000 per year. 
The billing system also provides the means to convey the value of public health services to clients. The 
pilot group partners are currently working on calculating an estimated Return on Investment (ROI) with 
respect to implementation of the Ahlers billing system. 

• Standardized Policies: Over the twelve-month period policies and procedures utilized by all 
agencies were evaluated in an effort to develop a standard set that could be agreed upon and 
posted on Central Valley Health District's website. After careful evaluation, it was determined 
that because each health department had subtle variations due to medical director and services 
that standard policies and procedures would not be possible (except for environmental health 
where standardization was accomplished). Central Valley Health District staff posted the 
agency's policies and procedures on www.centralvalleyhealth.org (facilitating current and future 

) updates). As a result, LaMoure County Public Health Department was able to become up-to-date 
on policies and procedures, which saved stafftime and personnel expense. Individual websites 
were also created by Central Valley Health District staff for each health department where 
agency-specific policies are accessible. Staff at each health department was trained to facilitate 
in-house website updating, which saves consultant costs for web updates. 

• Community Health Assessment: Community Health Assessment is the process of formally 
assessing and documenting the health status of a community. Community Health Assessments 
provide the ability to leverage community resources so they can do the most for you. A 
community health assessment document was completed for the SECRN and data was delineated 
by health department (county-level data distributed in summary form). Key data sources included 
the Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) and the Youth Risk Behavior Survey 
(YRBS). The document was formatted in a way that will facilitate statistical updating in 
subsequent years when the CHA needs to be completed. From here, health departments can 
convene community partners to review the data, identify priorities and work toward creating a 
community health improvement plan (CHIP). Completion of a CHA is now a requirement of 
not-for-profit hospitals and for half of the health departments having a CHA document has 
strengthened the relationship between the health department and local hospital. CHA's and 
CHIP's are key aspects of sustainability due to the comprehensive (non-programmatic silo) 
approaches required for each component. 

5 



• Public Health Accreditation :  Strong administrative policies and a Community Health 
Assessment are two key components in preparing for public health accreditation. SECRN health 
departments have engaged in both activities and Central Valley Health District staff has shared 
recommendations from the beta test site process completed in 20 1 0 . 

Public Health Services - Efficiency Detail: 

The members of the collaborative project all provide services to their constituents as identified by needs 
and federal programs in their jurisdiction. The four main services targeted for this project included 
chronic disease management, immunizations, family planning and sexual assault response team (SART). 

Due to the fact that no formal comprehensive assessment of the regional communities were conducted 
prior to the establishment of the pilot group through the Joint Powers Agreement the services area was not 
able to meet full potential. The following depicts the progress: 

• Chronic Disease Management (CDM): City-County Health District and Central Valley Health 
District are completing the third year of a Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) 
- funded chronic disease management program (Tri-County Chronic Disease Management 
Program). This program is the only public health CDM program in North Dakota and CDM is an 
Evidence-Based Practice. Copies of all CDM program materials including protocols, educational 
materials (such as My Personal Health Journal) were shared. Training in the form of videos and 
concepts were provided. SECRN staff indicated the CDM training was beneficial and would like 
to expand the CDM program to each respective area. Currently, the HRSA funding cannot 
support additional counties. SECRN collaborative agencies are exploring partnering for the next 
application cycle of the HRSA grant as well as pursuing discussions to facilitate billing for CDM 
services. 

• SART: Much information was gained with this collaboration. Services for SART are available 
in other regions for 2 of the 3 participating health units. Lamoure County has a resource in the 
Kedish house in Ellendale (neighboring Dickey County), and Wells County has services out of 
Devils Lake. Even with these other existing services, there are gaps that must be addressed. One 
agency is interested in services from Central Valley Health District and details are being 
investigated. 

• Family Planning: The need has been assessed and is present, however SECRN participants 
determined it would not be cost effective for Central Valley Family Planning staff to travel and 
provide services in the outlying areas (substantiated by a survey to gage interest in outlying 
communities if services were offered onsite). Hours for CVHD Family Planning have been 
modified to include evening hours, which has proven to be successful. Five evening clinics were 
scheduled over a six-month time period and clients from the SECRN areas received services 
during two of the five evening clinics. Providing transportation assistance (gas cards) may be a 
way to increase provision of services to clients in outlying areas. 
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• Immunizations: No new activities have transpired in this area due to the collaborative project. 
All involved agencies had worked together in the past with sharing of vaccines if needed and 
assisted in clinics as needed. A comparison of vaccine serum was completed by Central Valley 
Health District staff and it was determined that there is consistency in vaccine serum costs among 
the SECRN health departments, so group purchasing is not warranted. 

• Environmental Health: This area has expanded services in a wider area than the SECRN 
collaborative agencies (Wells, Foster, Barnes, Dickey, LaMoure, Logan, Mcintosh, Stutsman) . It 
is also self sustaining as each health department contributes a portion of funds to augment state 
aid dollars from the general fund allocation. 

Expanding or sharing services is not feasible without further fiscal support. Efficiencies realized are not 
enough to sustain any increases. Current funds minimally cover cost of living and maintaining existing 
services where they are currently provided. The collaborative agencies continue to plan 'cooperative' 
events such as immunization clinics to share staff and assist. Discussions on 'sharing' an FTE for a 
designated service, such as school nursing, chronic disease management nurse etc., is occurring, however 
is not recommended as fragmentation could occur---problems arise on non scheduled days for the FTE in 
that area. Also, it is known that communities respond more positively with local personal providing 
services. Nutrition services may be an option for sharing an FTE due to the nature of the type of service 
provided. 

Benefits/Challenges: 

The participants in the SECRN grant project reported many benefits as well as challenges. General 
consensus overwhelmingly emphasizes the benefits gained. 

• Benefits: 

o SECRN enabled agencies to improve business processes-billing and Ahlers Protocols 
o Uniform client charting and documentation 
o Nursing policy and procedure framework 
o Website for sharing and support 
o Improved tracking of expenses 
o Higher security for client information improving HIP AA compliance 
o Decrease time and increase efficiency for annual reports with more accurate data 
o Credible relationship building to aid in future collaborative projects 
o Improved standards of care-specifically Chronic Disease Management 
o Increased the professional level of staff as well as processes utilized 
o Availability of expertise and training 
o Trust between and among participating agencies 
o Established roadmap for the future (CHA/CHIP) to enhance sustainabi lity 
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• Challenges: 

o Continue to learn and fully utilize Ahlers to the fullest potential 
o Time to manage and maintain website 
o Lack of adequate realized savings to move forward in increasing and/or sharing services 
o Consideration of"Regional Accreditation" for participating agencies 
o More specific tracking for Environmental Health needed over and above what TIMS 

offers 

Succession Planning: 

It is clear that although initial thoughts of hesitation existed with some employees, throughout the entire 
evaluation process participants fully supported the activities of the grant and worked hard to accomplish 
goals within the short one year time period. I 00% of participants possess a desire to continue to work 
cooperatively and look into opportunities to do so as evidenced by the fol lowing statements reported in 
the survey: 

• Be creative and continue to work with agencies who desire to partner or develop new areas if 
more conducive 

• Partnering is the only way to ensure needed services at lower costs 
• Build on established relationships where common trust of members is present 
• Possibly utilize geographic regions or Emergency Preparedness regions as a model 
• Reported areas of interest for future expansion of sharing services: Chronic Disease 

Management, Family Planning, Immunizations, and possibly tobacco. (note: due to short 
implementation time period, these areas were not able to be fully developed by the SECRN) 

• Exploration of a 'shared' nutritionist for the region is necessary. Population need due to 
increasing obesity is the key driver. Potential funding may also be available to assist in 
supporting this FTE through various grant opportunities 

• Funding needs to be considered in all cooperative activities, fiscal support is an incentive, details 
are needed to evaluate options that will benefit all. Any opportunity to save healthcare dollars 
and administrative costs is a way to provide improved and expanded services to the public. 

Current cooperative endeavors being overseen by Central Valley Health District include: 

• $2500 grant promoting of school based immunization: Barnes, LaMoure, Logan, Stutsman 
• Applied for CDC study school flu clinics: Barnes, LaMoure, Logan Stutsman 
• Plans to work together to apply for the HRSA Chronic Disease 

Implications for future regionalization of public health services 

The 'greatest good for the greatest number' is a well known phrase in the community and public health 
arena. This overarching concept must be kept in mind at all times when planning for the future of 
services. Core functions of public health services include assessment, policy development and assurance. 
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The Minnesota Department of Health http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/cth/ela/index.html has provided 
a well documented model to follow. The areas of essential public health responsibil ity identified include: 

1 .  Assure an adequate local public health infrastructure. 
2 .  Promote healthy communities and healthy behavior. 
3 .  Prevent the spread o f  infectious disease. 
4 .  Protect against environmental health hazards. 
5 .  Prepare for and respond to disasters and assist communities i n  recovery. 
6. Assure the quality and accessibility of health services. 

Keeping these important areas of responsibility in mind, it is also imperative that planning must be done 
in a methodological fair manner. The Quality Improvement Department of Public Health in the county of 
Los Angles http://publ ichealth.lacounty.gov/qi/index.htm has documented useful method for priority­
setting. The priority setting provides accountability at three levels: 

• Focus resources on health issues that are of greatest importance to the community 
• Must apply those resources to support interventions and strategies effective and acceptable to the 

community 
• Must dedicate resources to evaluate work performed in order to demonstrate performance done 

well or improve if needed. 

Conclusion 

SECRN accomplished a huge task in a short one year time period and has demonstrated the ability to 
effectively share what works in public health. The short time-frame also inhibited participants in 
experiencing the full potential particularly with respect to the provision of services. Participants were 
engaged and worked together in a positive manner and desire to continue with this model. Continued 
fiscal support from local, state and federal entities with a focus on community health assessment and 
community health improvement planning is essential to most effectively and efficiently conduct public 
health programs and provide public health services. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Mona P. Klose, RN, MS, CPHQ 
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SB 2030 - REGI ONAL P U B LI C  H EALTH N ETWO R KS 
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• The $4 m i l l ion req uest was origi na l ly based on $6.00 pe r ca p ita 

( I nvest i ng in Ameri ca's  H ea lth Nationa l  Report) 

• F u n d i ng is for fo rmation of regional  p u b l ic hea lth n etworks 

o b i l l  defi nes a regiona l network as  two LPHU's se rvi n g  a popu lat ion of 

15,000 or 3 L PH U's  

o N etwo rks a re a p p roved by State H e a lth Officer 

o I ntent of the b i l l  i s  for l ink ing core a ctivities to com m u n ity needs 

Com m u n ity needs may i nc lude : e n v i ronme nta l h e a lth, prevention 

( d ia betes, obes ity, menta l health,  s u ic ide, ca n ce r, ch ro n i c  d isease 

m a nage ment, co l orecta l, breast ca n cer) .  Seve ra l L P H U's h a ve 

completed com m u n ity hea lth assessments i m p rove m e nt p l a ns a nd 

a re wo rking towa rd publ ic  health a ccred itat ion a nd th is  type of 

fu n d i ng is perti n e nt.  

o Accou nta b i l ity is  the workplan -- s u ggested co m m ittee to review 

workplans (3  State reps + 4 LPH reps determ i ned by N D  SACCHO by 

geogra p hy, s ize a n d d ive rs ity) 

• Modeled afte r R EA's, w h ich a re esta b l i shed networks 

Sa mpl e a ! l ocat ion spreadsheet:  

• Two com pone nts to fu n d i ng (one is ad m i n ,  one is services);  R EA m ode l  is  

structu red accord i n g  to a d m i n istrative costs and se rvices based o n  15,000 
pop u lat ion 
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ND Department of Health 

Local Public Health **SAMPLE** 

(20 1 0  Census) 

Base 

Census Allotment 

NW Divide 2,071 
McKenzie 6,360 
Mountrail 7,673 
Williams 22,398 

sw Adams 2,343 
Billings 783 
Bowman 3,151 
Dunn 3,536 
Golden Valley 1 ,680 
Hettinger 2,477 
Slope 727 
Stark 24,1 99 

NW Central Bottineau 6,429 
Burke 1 ,968 
McHenry 5,395 
Mclean 8,962 
Renville 2,470 
Sheridan 1 ,321 
Ward 61 ,675 

Total 165,618 $ 50,000 $ 91 1 ,084 $ 961 ,084 
SE Central Logan 1 ,990 

Dickey 5,289 
Mcintosh 2,809 
LaMoure 4,139 
Barnes( City County) 1 1 ,066 
Foster 3,343 
Wells 4,207 
Stutsman 21 ' 100 

Total 53,943 $ 50,000 $ 296,747 $ 346,747 
SW Central Grant 2,394 

Mercer 8,424 
Burleigh 81 ,308 
Emmons 3,550 
Kidder 2,435 
Morton 27,471 
Oliver 1 ,846 
Sioux 4 , 153 

Total 1 3 1 ,581 $ 50,000 $ 723,842 $ 773,842 
NE Central Benson 6,660 

Eddy 2,385 
Cavalier 3,993 
Towner 2,246 
Rolette 1 3,937 
Pierce 4,357 
Ramsey 1 1 ,451 

Total 45,029 $ 50,000 $ 247,71 0  $ 297,710 
N E  Nelson 3,126 

Walsh 1 1  ' 1 1 9  
Grand Forks 66,861 
Pembina 7,413 
Griggs 2,420 

Total 90,939 $ 50,000 $ 500,266 $ 550,266 
S E  Fargo/Cass 149,778 

Ransom 5,457 
Richland 16,321 
Sargent 3,829 
Steele 1 ,975 
Traill 8,121 

Total 1 85,481 $ 50,000 $ 1 ,020,352 $ 1 ,070,352 
Regional Health 672,591 $ 300,000 $ 3,700,000 $ 4,000,000 

KEY Amounts 
Base Allotment $50,000 
Ttl Amt Distributed $4,000,000 
Total Available $ 4,000,000 
Less Admin Portion $ (300,000) 
Balance to allocate per capita $ 3,700,000 
Per capita amount $ 5.50 
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Recommended Amendments to SB  2030 Regional  Publ ic  Health Networks 

• Remove strike, l ine 1�15, to i nc lude "verified as meeting the requ i rements of th is  chapter a nd 

chapter 54-40.3 ." 

• Page 2, l ine 1 1, c. strike "comply with requ irements adopted by the health counci l  by ru le .  

• Page 2 ., #2, b .  change "needs of the region" to needs of the Regiona l  publ ic  health network" .  

• Add, l i ne  16, 4. ,  The joint powers agreement must 

a .  Establ ish t h e  number  o f  members of t h e  governing board 

b.  Estab l ish the manner i n  which members of the governing board a re determined 

c.  Requ i re that each member of the governing boa rd be an  ind iv idua l  currently serving on  the 

board of a pa rticipating publ ic  health un it or  the designee of a participating publ ic  health 

un it's board 

• Page 4, l i ne  20, remove "Annual" from the tit le and l ine 2 1, remove "annua l" to read, "prepare a 

p lan rega rd ing the provision . . .  " 

• Add 23-35.1-06 F u nding Distr ibution 

Fund ing appropriated for imp lementation of this chapter sha l l  be d istributed to the approved regiona l  

pub l ic  hea l th networks based on  an  approved work plan and budget. A base a l lotment for 

adm in istrat ion of each approved network may be provided. If the approved work p lans and budgets 

exceed the amount ava i l able, a d istri bution formula may be used . 

Add, Section 5 Appropriation, l ine 3, The State Health Department wi l l  d istribute appropriated funds 

with i nput from a committee of 3 loca l publ ic  hea l th representatives appointed by the North Dakota 

State Association of City and County Health Offic ia ls and 3 members appointed by the State Health 

Officer. 
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1 3 . 0034. 0300 1 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council  staff for 
Senator Mathern J..t. / February 1 3, 20 1 3  � 

PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2030 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" insert "create and enact section 23-35. 1 -06 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the d istribution of funding to regional public health networks; 
to" 

Page 1 , l ine 1 4 ,  remove the overstrike over "verified as meeting the requirements of this 
chapter" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 5, remove the overstrike over "and chapter 64 40.3" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, replace "region" with "regional public health network" 

Page 2, l ine 1 1  , remove "c." 

Page 2, l ine 1 1  , overstrike "Comply with requirements" 

Page 2, l ine 1 1  , remove "adopted by" 

Page 2,  l ine 1 1 , overstrike "the health council" 

Page 2,  l ine 1 1 ,  remove "adopts" 

Page 2, l ine 1 1 ,  overstrike "by rule;" 

Page 2, l ine 1 2 , remove the overstrike over "e:-'' 

Page 2, l ine 1 2 ,  remove "d." 

Page 2,  l ine 1 5, replace "e. "  with "d . "  

Page 4,  l ine 1 7, after the period insert: "The joint powers agreement m ust: 

a .  Establish the number of members of the governing board; 

� Establish the manner in which members of the governing board are 
approved: and 

c. Require that each member of the governing board be an individual 
currently serving on the board of a participating public health unit or 
the designee of a participating public health unit's board. "  

Page 4,  l ine 20, overstrike "Annual plan" a n d  insert immediately thereafter "Plan" 

Page 4,  l ine 21 , overstrike "an annual" and insert immed iately thereafter "�" 

Page 4, after l ine 29, insert: 

"SECTION 5. Section 23-35 . 1 -06 of the N orth Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

23-35. 1 -06. Distribution of fu nding to regional public health networks . 

For the purposes of this section. the state health officer shall seek input 
regarding the distribution of funding to approved regional public health networks from a 
committee made up of three local public health representatives appointed by the North 

Page No. 1 



Dakota state association of city and county health officials and three representatives of 
the state department of health appointed by the state health officer. Funding 
appropriated for the implementation of this chapter must be distributed to an approved 

• local public health network based on an approved work plan and budget. Base funding 
for administration of each approved network may be provided. If the total of approved 
regional public health network workplans and budgets exceed funding available. the 
committee m ay develop a distribution formula for al locating the funds avai lable." 

Renumber according l y  

STATEMENT O F  PU RPOSE OF AMENDM ENT: 

This amendment: 

Removes the requirement that local public health networks comply with requirements adopted by 
the Health Council; 

Identifies the requirements of the joint powers agreement relating to the structure of the 
governing body of a regional public health network; and 

Provides for the distribution of funding to regional public health networks. 

Page No. 2 
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Testimony 
House Human Services Committee 

Senate Bill 2030 
March 18,  2013 

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Chairman Weisz and members of the Human Services Committee .  
My name is Kelly Nagel, and I am the public health liaison for the North Dakota 
Department of Health. I am here to provide background information on the local 
public health system and information on the proposed changes to NDCC 23-35 . 1  
relating to Regional Public Health Networks as approved by the Interim Health 
Services Committee. 

Background 
North Dakota's  public health system is decentralized with 28 independent local 
public health units working in partnership with the state health department. The 28 
local public health units are organized into single or multi-county health districts, 
city/county health departments or city/county health districts. Seventy-five percent 
of the local health units serve single county, city or combined city/county 
jurisdictions, whil_e the other 25 percent serve multi-county jurisdictions. The 
-western part of the state consists of multi-county health districts, whereas the 
eastern part of the state consists mostly of single county health districts and 
departments. There are three city health departments in the state: Bismarck, Fargo 
and Grand Forks (map attached). 

In this decentralized approach, the units are required to meet state standards and 
follow state laws and regulations, but they can exercise their own powers and have 
administrative authority to make decisions to meet their local needs, and therefore 
determine their own service area or jurisdiction. 

According to the National Association of County and City Health Officials 
National Profile of Local Health Departments, 54 percent of North Dakota's  local 
public health units serve a population of less than 1 0,000. These health units have 
an average of 3 FTE for all staff, 1 .5 FTE being a nurse, and an average budget or 
expenditures of $ 1 1 5 ,000. The profile survey also indicated that 34 percent of the 
total annual revenue sources for all North Dakota local public health units is from 
local government, 28 percent is federal pass through, 9 percent is state direct with 
only 5 percent from state aid, 1 percent is direct from Medicare and Medicaid, and 
24 percent is from fees and other sources (funding pie chart attached) . As a result 
of the various structures, and because funding sources and amounts differ for local 



• 

• 

• 

public health units, there is a wide variety in the levels of services they provide and 
in their capacity to provide comprehensive services. 

Local public health units have a history of collaborating within a region. A 
regional infrastructure was established for emergency preparedness and response to 
amass the resources necessary to meet new public health challenges and to provide 
additional capacity throughout the state, especially in the smaller health units . A 
lead local public health unit has been identified for emergency preparedness and 
response in each of the eight regions of the state. Each of these units has employed 
a public health emergency response coordinator, a public information officer and 
an environmental health practitioner, all of whom provide services to the region. 
Funding for these efforts is provided through the federal emergency preparedness 
and response grant. The North Dakota Department of Health also remotely staffs 
seven epidemiologists who provide services to the regions regarding disease­
related issues and five environmental health practitioners who inspect food and 
lodging facilities. The lead public health units also employ environmental health 
practitioners who provide general environmental health services within their 
regwn. 

SB 2030 Changes to NDCC 23-35. 1 Relating to Public Health Regional 
Networks 
The North Dakota Association of City and County Health Officials (SACCHO) 
selected representatives to serve on a task force to develop recommendations for 
changes to NDCC 23-3 5 . 1 Regional Public Health Networks. 

The general theme around the task force recommendations is to have the statute 
language more permissive than prescriptive. The recommendations align wel l  with 
national research findings. The National Association of City and County Health 
Officials compilation of research findings relating to regionalization indicated the 
following abbreviated summary of benefits to regionalization and structural 
considerations: 

Benefits: 
• Two most commonly accepted reasons for regionalization are that it results 

in improved efficiency and economies of scale. 
• Multi-county and regional local health departments provide a more 

comprehensive set of services than smaller departments. 
• Allows health departments to pool resources to meet the demands of 

research and evidence based practices. 



• 

• 

• 

Structuring 
• Experiences from regionalized health departments have revealed 

commonalities �hould be considered when deciding the geographic area of a 
regwn . . 

• Other considerations for a viable region should be based on: 
o Sound operational principles . 
o Ability to integrate. 
o Ability to provide equitable services and access. 
o Population demographics. 
o Availability of resources . 

The establishment and requirements of the Regional Public Health Networks were 
modeled after the Regional Educational Association (REA). REAs receive student 
foundation aid funding or state aid for each participating school district, which has 
been the most valuable asset in allowing for about 90 percent of North Dakota's 
student population to be covered by an REA. There were changes made to the 
statute defining REAs in the 20 1 1  legislation. The list of potential administrative 
functions and student services was removed as well as the required number of 
shared services and functions. Required services and functions were replaced with 
five key focus areas or core services. 

Like the REAs, the original Regional Network Pilot Project conducted in 20 1 0  by 
the Southeast Central local public health unit region (Jamestown area) also 
experienced difficulty in distinguishing between administrative functions and 
services. Therefore, the task force proposes to remove the lists and allow for 
flexibility, but yet some standardization, by requiring networks to create a work 
plan that includes activities around the core public health activities identified by a 
national steering committee for "Public Health in America." The core activities 
include: 1 )  Prevent epidemics and spread of disease; 2) Protect against 
environmental hazards; 3)  Prevent injuries; 4) Promote health behaviors; 5)  
Respond to disasters; and 6) Assure the quality and accessibility of health services . 
Identified work plan activities should also meet the community needs or reflect a 
community health assessment. These requirements will assure that populations 
covered by regional health networks will be better protected and that their health 
needs are better met. ·.J 

Another recommendation is to remove the requirement for the network to 
correspond to one of the emergency preparedness and response regions. The 
defined geographical boundaries prohibit health units with an existing working 
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relationship to form a network. For example, Cavalier County Public Health may 
work closely with Walsh County Public Health and have commonalities, but 
current statute would not allow the two to participate in the same network. The task 
force proposes that networks serve a minimum population of 1 5 ,000 or comprise at 
least three local public health units. 

The final recommendation is to remove the requirement for the network to have a 
regional network health officer. The authority of the regional health officer is not 
clear with statute requiring that there also be a local health officer with specific 
authority and responsibilities for each local public health unit jurisdiction. 

The original pilot project conducted in the Southeast Central region (Jamestown 
area) in 20 1 0  achieved successes that the Southeast local public health region 
(Fargo area) wanted to model and explore further. One of the things they are 
testing as part of a current pilot project is the effectiveness in a region with varying 
health units - a  large city health unit jurisdiction and five smaller county health 
unit jurisdictions. 

The Southeast local public health region is currently undergoing a three-year 
regional network pilot project funded by the Bush Foundation. The collaborative is 
beginning year_ two of the project. Local public health units included in the 
southeast collaborative are the lead health unit, Fargo Cass Public Health; and the 
single county health units, Ransom County, Richland County, Sargent County, 
Steele County and Traill District. 

The Southeast local public health region project is specifically focused on 
improving capabilities and capacity to provide more consistent environmental 
health services throughout the region; effectively implementing and utilizing 
electronic health records for population-based services; and preparing for National 
Public Health Accreditation. 

Southeast local public health region partners believe that shared capacity in 
environmental health will be sustained by the adoption of ordinances throughout 
the region which will result in a requirement for additional inspections and fee 
collections. Accreditation can be achieved and sustained by sharing capacity to 
prepare for accreditation and through a joint application. The joint application 
option will save the six local public health units a total of $63,600. Collaboratively 
preparing and applying for accreditation not only has financial and staff 
efficiencies, it has also made accreditation more realistic for smaller health units to 
apply. Finally, the electronic health records will result in staff efficiencies and 



better data collection and analysis, which will better position the c�llaborative for 
other funding sources. 

This project will provide additional evidence that formal collaborations will 
strengthen local public health infrastructure, more efficiently use limited funding 
and staff, and provide more equitable access to quality public health services for 
people in all counties of North Dakota. 

This concludes my testimony. I am happy to answer any questions you may have. 

/ 
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House Human Services Committee 
Senate Bi l l  2030 
March 1 8, 201 3  

Ruth Bachmeier, Fargo Cass Publ ic Health 

Good Morning Chairman Weisz, and members of the committee. My name is Ruth 
Bachmeier, and I am the Director at Fargo Cass Public Health . I am here today to 
provide comment on the benefits of the reg ional public health network in the southeast 
corner of North Dakota. As Kelly mentioned , local publ ic health un its in the southeast 
area are involved in a 3 year grant funded by the Bush Foundation.  This area includes 
the counties of Cass, Ransom , Rich land , Sargent, Steel and Trai l l .  We are all 
independent single county health units who have chosen to work together to add ress 
the publ ic health needs of our commun ities. 

I would l ike to share some highl ights of the fi rst year of our Col laborative and some 
lessons learned through this experience. F irst, we have chosen to formal ly ca l l  this 
group the Southeast North Dakota Public Health Collaborative. We intentional ly d id not 
use the word Regional or Regional ization in our new name as our ind ividual health 
departments wi l l  remain independent entities in contrast to how publ ic health is 
structured reg ionally in other parts of the state. As outl ined in statute , we have 
developed a d raft Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) that describes our col laborative and 
the work that is proposed . The current focus is on three areas; addressing 
environmental health capacity, transition to electronic health records,  and preparation 
for National Public Health Accred itation. 

I have learned many important lessons this past year through our work as a 
collaborative; the first is that collaboration at this level is hard work and time consuming . 
This is not to d iminish what I truly bel ieve wil l  be great benefits for our collaborative in  
the long term , but  rather to h igh l ight the importance of funding for in itiatives such as 
these. Our Collaborative has met every 2 weeks throughout the past year in order to 
keep in l ine with pre-establ ished objectives . 

Second ly, I have learned that local publ ic health units are al l  d ifferent in their ind ivid ual 
capabi l ities and yet we have common goals for our commun ities. By strateg ically 
plann ing for program development, capital izing on avai lable resources , and provid ing 
the evaluation and data to support our work, the entire collaborative, and most 
importantly the residents of our commun ities wi l l  benefit from improved core publ ic 
health functions. 

Lastly, I have learned that work of this nature does not happen qu ickly. We are 
fortunate to currently have the support of the Bush Foundation grant; however it is 
certa inly my desire and the desire of the Southeast North Dakota Public Health 
Collaborative to continue our work to provide efficient and effective publ ic health 
services to our commun ities wel l  after the grant fund ing is exhausted . This important 
bi l l  would provide financial resources to al low such work to continue. 

This concludes my testimony. Thank you for your  consideration of this important b i l l .  
would be happy to answer any questions. 



Public Health Networks Testimony 

Senate Bill 2030 

March 1 8, 20 1 3  

Good Morning, Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee, 

my name is Robin Iszler, Administrator at Central Valley Health District. I am here 

today to tell you a little history and highlight accomplishments of the SE Central 

Regional PH network pilot project that was funded in 2009. At that time $275 ,000 was 

appropriated for a regional pilot project through SB 2333. On July 1 ,  20 1 0, a contract 

was awarded from the State Health Department to Central Valley Health District and 

their partners: City County Health - Valley City, Wells County District Health ­

Fessenden and LaMoure County District Health Unit - LaMoure. The work that was 

completed by our Southeast Central pilot project was shared with members of the Health 

Service Committee (as detailed in an external evaluator report). 

As you may know, some of the work that was completed as a group during our one year 

pilot project includes: Computer based time recording system (TIMS) for standardized 

employee time reporting, Computerized billing system (Ahlers) which allowed for 

scheduling, billing and data collection of services provided at the local public health 

offices, standardized policies and sharing of policies among the health departments, 

community health assessment which helped identify local needs, training to nurses on a 
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chronic disease management, expanded family planning services to the smaller 

communities, and increasing environmental health services to the counties .  

During the pilot project, many of the improvements made to local health departments 

changed the way we do business and were sustained as they remain in place today. By 

working collaboratively as a network, in addition to strengthening our relationships as 

agencies, we saved $ 1 5 ,000 on the purchase of the billing system. As a result, three local 

public health units have the system for about the same money as it would cost one local 

public health unit to purchase it independently. These examples illustrate how the pilot 

enabled our local agencies to make good investments to improve the provision of public 

health services. 

A report released by Trust for America's Health in July 2008 found that a small strategic 

investment in disease prevention could result in significant savings in health care costs. 

This report concluded that an investment of $ 1 0  per person per year in proven community 

based programs could save the country billions of dollars annually within five years. 

LPHUs in ND appreciate that you as legislators have devoted some funding to local 

public health state aid .  As Kel ly mentioned, the current local public health general state 

aid funding is $3 ,000,000 (biennial investment) calculates to about $4.4 per capita. The 

additional $4,000,000 in SB 203 0 for regional public health networks would invest 

another $5 .8  per capita. Together the state aid and regional public health network 

funding would provide the recommended $ 1  0 per person investment for public health 

programs and services. The proposed regional public health network funding amount of 

$4 million could potentially provide an opportunity to meet the minimum, finally achieve 
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consistency in public health services and most importantly put EHPs to work in 

communities that are not able to meet the community needs. As you are aware, these are 

exciting and challenging times in our state, with public health implications. Local public 

health units appreciate that legislators are receptive to this type of opportunity (modeled 

after the Regional Education Associations - REAs) as the timing is right for regional 

public health networks. 

SB 2030 will allow for improvements to the local public health departments here in North 

Dakota by encouraging regional shared services. We are excited about new opportunities 

that will result from this bill. I hope you will support SB 2030 and I'm happy to try to 

answer any questions you may have. Thank you. 
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Testimony - ND House Human Services Committee 
3/18/13 
Theresa Will, RN, Director 
City-County Health District-Valley City 

Good Morning, Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee. My 

name is Theresa Will and I am the Director at City-County Health District (CCHD) in Valley 

City. Our agency provides public health services for the citizens of Barnes County. In 2009, we 

were fortunate to be a participant in the Southeast Central Regional Public Health Network Pilot 

and look forward to the prospect of continuing such work in the future. 

The regional network pilot enabled us to make major progress in improving our billing 

practices and making in-office processes more efficient, in many ways changing the way we do 

business. By implementing a computerized system, we are able to bill for services electronically 

as well as generate service utilization statistics quickly and accurately, no longer using paper 

logs and paper receipts to gain this information. As a result, billing has become increasingly 

faster and more accurate. After the network project was completed we estimated that our billing 

efficiency savings alone, for the project period was over $6,000. 

Throughout our network pilot project we shared policies, worked on various grant 

applications jointly and also gathered and compiled health-related data for our region (one of the 

first steps to prepare for public health accreditation). Recently, Barnes County partners gathered 

and completed our Community Health Assessment which was initiated by this pilot. Our focus 

areas for needed improvement (Community Health Improvement Plan) are : 

1 .  Prevention of Chronic Disease 

2. Violence Prevention which includes suicide prevention, neglect, abuse, etc. 

3 .  Improving access for mental health services and substance abuse prevention 
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These are all HUGE issues that have and will require a great deal of on-going public 

health effort, working on policy and systems changes on the local level as well as at the state 

level. They are all issues that cannot be tackled alone; we will need to work with our 

surrounding public health partners if we hope to effect any change in these areas which our 

community has identified for improvement. All of these focus areas tie back to Key Public 

Health Activities that are supported by this bill: "Prevent injuries," "Promote and encourage 

healthy behaviors," and "Assure the quality and accessibility of health services." 

Like any business in today's world, we need to "work smarter" as we provide services 

and be more efficient with the staff that we employ. By working more closely with our peers (via 

regional networks),  we can continue to improve efficiencies at the local public health level. 

Overall, our regional network pilot provided an opportunity for our health units to improve the 

way we serve our communities, achieve some standardization in services where possible and 

assist in preparation for public health accreditation. 

As a small local public health unit, I realize that there are many efficiencies that can be 

gained by working collaboratively with other health units and I appreciate the opportunity that 

this legislation allows. I hope you will support SB 2030 because it will help local public health of 

all types/sizes gain a better capacity to improve health in our communities. Thank you for the 

opportunity to visit with you today. I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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Regional  Publ ic  Hea lth Networks 

Benefits to Local Health Departments 

from ND Local Pu blic Hea lth Ad m i nistrators 

• Brenda Stallman, Trail/ District Health Unit, Hillsboro- To be fiscal ly respons ib le, a pub l ic  

hea lth department cannot poss ib ly provide  every type of service as perceived as a n eed by each 

citizen .  What a fu nded regiona l  network cou ld do is e l im inate the si lo effect of trying to add ress 

a l l  requests for services by a l l  cit izens and a l low us to work on bigger outcomes in populat ion 

hea lth  that would provide a la rger benefit for the investment .  Every a rea of the state is short of 

environmenta l  hea lth workers. A regiona l  approach wou ld  reduce admin i strative costs and  

a l low for b roader assessment and  de l ivery of  services. Tra in ing  and response to  envi ronm enta l 

and other  pu bl ic  hea lth issues would be stream-l ined . Assu rance of service d e l ive ry does not 

a lways mean provid i ng the service itself, but th rough a regiona l  network, it m ay be easier and  

more cost effective to  provide access th rough another department with i n  a region .  

• Wanda Kratoch vil, Walsh County Health District, Grafton - Loca l pub l ic hea lth un its a re very 

ind ividua l ized i n  what types of services they a re ab le  to offer, many t imes focusing o n  a reas of 

hea lth care that a re not provided by other  hea lth care agencies with in  their commun ity. This 

makes each pub l ic hea lth un it very un ique in what they offer to the com m un ity. Regiona l  

networks for pub l i c  h ea lth offer the a b i l ity to provide n ecessary services ( environmenta l  hea lth,  

home visitin g, etc . )  i n  a coord inated manner thus saving money through the poo l ing of ha rd to 

recruit profession a ls .  Networks h ave the potentia l  of decreasing the dup l ication of efforts that 

may occu r as we develop programs and set up  pol icies and proced ures. 



• Ruth Bachmeier, Fargo Cass Public Health, Fargo- The desire of the Southeast North  Dakota 

Pub l ic  Hea lth Col laborative is to provide efficient and effective pub l ic  hea lth services to our  

commun it ies .  SB 2030 is an  important b i l l  that wou ld a l low th i s  type of  col laborative work to 

continue .  

• Jeanne Chaput, Pembina County Public Health, Cavalier- Regiona l  hea lth network services 

h ave proven to be benefic ia l  to the state, the pub lic  hea lth un its and  the people we serve. For  

the past seven years we have uti l ized a regiona l  Envi ronmental Hea lth  I nspector for 

n u isance/h ea lth hazard compla ints, inspections, and general pu b l ic  safety consu ltations .  

These services h ave provided consistent enforcement of regu lations for hea lth standards a n d  

environmenta l  concerns with in  t h e  northeast region {Grand Forks, Walsh ,  Ne lson, Griggs and  

Pemb ina  counties) .  Regiona l  Pub l ic Hea lth N etworks would make i t  possible to  further 

strengthen th i s  co l l aboration among neighboring counties. 

• Javayne Oyloe, Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston- Regional  Publ ic Health  

N etworks wou ld provide a n  opportun ity to strengthen capacity for pub l ic  hea lth accreditat ion,  

Environmenta l  Hea lth  { inc lud ing tra in i ng, such as septic insta l ler  tra i n ing by partnering with 

F i rst District H ea lth Un it) and pub l ic  hea lth  nurs ing via shared nurs ing staff. 

• !(oren Volk, Wells County District Health Unit Harvey- Having a lead agency to rely on has  

been very va luab le  when i n  need of  expertise with bu i ld ing a new b i l l i ng  system, saving t ime 

a n d  provid ing  cleaner data .  Karen recommends th i s  to  a l l  s ingle h ealth d epartments as a way to  

u pgrade com p uter systems & b ring smal ler agencies u p  to  a more professional  level .  

• Bev Voller, Emmons County Public Health, Linton- I n  home nurs ing ca re is a very much needed 

n u rs ing service in  Emmons County due to the large a m ount of e lderly l iv ing in the ir  homes. 
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Frequent ly, we must travel to d istant corners of the county for one in-home c l ient consuming 

most of our  t ime i n  trave l .  This c l ient may be just a few mi les from another pub l i c  hea lth dept. ,  

but  not in  the ir  county. Through the regiona l  network, an agreement to provide i n-home 

nu rs ing services to th is c l ient by another county pub l ic hea lth  d ept. could be  m ade, thus saving 

va luab le  time and m i leage expenses. 

• Keith Johnson, Custer Health, Mandan- Custer Hea lth,  a five cou nty hea lth  u n it based i n  

Mandan, has several  i n itiatives ready to  go that wou ld assist i n  m eeting com mun ity needs 

when regiona l  fund ing becomes ava i lab le :  

1.  We supply E H  services to rura l  Burleigh, E mmons and Kid der  Counties.  These programs 

are i n  their  fundamental stages, stymied by l im itat ions on t ime and fund ing. We n eed 

to get subdivis ion p lann ing put in p lace a round the l a kes in K idder, m unic ipa l  nu isance 

ord inances in the sma l l  towns in every county, and regu l at ions passed on sewage 

systems, swim ming pools, and tattoo parlors in  every j u risd iction . 

2 .  School nu rs ing is a service that  we wou ld  m arket to the  schools that want  more n u rs ing 

service. Immed iate payback would be i n  the a reas of d ecreased abse nteeism, med 

admin istration for students, hea lth curricu lum deve lopment, and  i nput on Individua l  

Ed ucation P lans for students for whom hea lth is a learn ing parameter. 

3 .  I n corporat ion of  our  e lectronic records i nto the NDH IN  system.  
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• Robin lszler, Central Valley Health District, Jamestown and Napoleon- Central 

Va l ley and their partners accomp l ished m any improvements to the local pub l ic  h ea lth system in 

2010 with funding from the p revious regional  network b i l l .  During the p i lot p roject many of the 

enhancements made to loca l  hea lth  departments in  the SE centra l  region sti l l  rema in  in  

existence today p roving that loca l  agencies made good investments to improve PH  servies. SB 

2030 wi l l  a l low CVH D and others to improve services and  focus on commun ity hea lth 

needs that a re specific to each ind ivid ua l  a rea as our commun ities have identified hea lth needs 

in ou r 2012 Commun ity Hea lth Assessm ent and Health  Improvement P lans .  

• Barb Frydenlund, Rolette County Public Health District, Rolla-

Each pu b l i c  hea lth u n it with in ND de l ivers very un ique services. The services de l ivered a re often 

fund ing d riven, mean ing if fund ing is avai lab le for a specific  p rogram, then that p rogram is 

imp le mented. The p rograms too often do  not fu l ly represent the needs of the community. This 

lack of p rogramming  is typ ical ly related to lack of ava i l ab le  fund ing to local pub l i c  health . The 

estab l ishment of a Regiona l  Network could a l low for structu red shar ing of 

services/program m i ng. Two exa m p les of programming through a Regional  Network that our  

residents cou ld benefit from are environ mental hea lth services and fami ly p lann ing. 

Currently, we receive envi ronmental hea lth services from Lake Region Pub l ic  Hea lth th rough 

state aid fu nd ing a l located to Lake Region to provide enviro n mental services to a reas with in  the 

region n ot otherwise receiving environmenta l hea lth services. Th is  fu nding is l im ited to 

$25,000.00 per year .  Ro lette Cou nty cou ld  greatly benefit with  increased environmental hea lth 

services, so that we could enhance and have a p roactive approach to environmental hea lth 

issues. Currently due to very l im ited fund ing and staff time m uch of our environmental hea lth 
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service is reactive. Fam ily P lann ing services a re a m uch needed and frequently requested by 

our  county res idents. To date we have been unable  to acqu i re fun d ing for fam i ly p lan n ing 

services and  h ave been cited the reason as l ack  of  fund ing and fund ing for fam i ly p lann ing with 

i n  ND was a l located prior to the estab l i shment of Rolette County Pub l ic  Health i n  2001. The 

concept of the Regiona l  Network sharing cou ld  al low for Fam ily P lann ing services to be 

provided i n  a h igh needs a rea .  Each hea lth d i str ict/unit is  u n ique  i n  the services p rovided  and  

each  county is  un ique i n  the a rea of  health needs, services desired and  i n  its cu lture. A regiona l  

hea lth n etwork for pub l ic hea lth can provide  services that  can be shared thus increasing 

ava i l ab i l ity and decreasing fiscal overhead . Existing health d i stricts/un its m ust ma inta in  

a utonomy, support/buy in from local res idents, and the cu lture of the county must be 

preserved . 
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Southeast N D  Public Health Collaborative 

1 am Brenda Stal lman, Director at Trai l !  District Health Un it. I would l ike draw your 

attention to some progress gained through the col laborative effort of six independent 

single county health departments in the southeast corner of North Dakota. Publ ic health 

departments from the counties of Cass , Ransom, Rich land , Sargent, Steele and Trai l !  

have partnered together along with fund ing from a Bush Foundation grant to address 

the publ ic health needs of our communities. 

Our collaborative chose to address projects that would increase our  efficiency and 

capacity as health departments . More specifical ly, we are working together on 

broadening envi ronmental health capacity, preparing for accreditation ,  and 

implementing electronic health records. We are approaching the midpoint of a 3 year 

' g rant cycle. 

We have learned some valuable lessons at this point. The first is that col laboration at 

this level is hard work and t ime consuming. This is not to d iminish what wi l l  be 

sign ificant benefits for our col laborative in the long term, but rather to h igh l ight the 

importance of funding for in itiatives such as these. Our collaborative has met every 2 

weeks throughout the past year in order to keep in l ine with pre-established objectives. 

Secondly, we have learned that local publ ic health units are al l  d ifferent in their  

individual capabi l ities and yet we have common goals for our communities. By 

strategical ly planning for program development, capitalizing on ava i lable resources, and 

providing the evaluation and data to support our work, the enti re col laborative , and most 

importantly the residents of our communities wi l l  benefit from improved core publ ic 

health functions. 
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Southeast ND Publ ic  H ealth Collaborative 

Lastly, we have learned that work of th is nature does not happen q u ickly. We are 

fortunate to currently have the support of the Bush Foundation grant; however it is 

certain ly the commitment of the Southeast North Dakota Publ ic Health Collaborative to 

continue our work to provide efficient and effective public health services to our 

commun ities wel l  after the grant funding is exhausted . This important bi l l  would provide 

financial resources to allow such work to continue. 

Activities accompl ished thus far include securing a consu ltant to assist in gathering 

requ i red documentation wh ile formulating a time l ine to achieve accred itation .  Through 

this process we are pleased to find that we can apply as a col laborative for 

accred itation; however each health department must sti l l  complete the preparation work 

individual ly. Second ly, we have devised a p lan to implement the same electronic health 

record program simu ltaneously while achieving technical support that is impractical to 

garnish on an individual basis. We are currently in the process of bu i ld ing our 

environmental health capacity by identifying key ord inances in antic ipation of working 

with our  local jurisdictions for approval .  

Again th is work would not be possible without the accompanying money from the Bush 

Foundation. Our budget for year one was $80,740 that included purchase of necessary 

hardware ,  staff and travel time for Collaborative meetings, and Qua l ity Improvement 

tra in ing . 

For year 2 ,  we have budgeted $130,000 for technical support for e lectronic health 

records and environmental health support; whi le maintaining our col laborative through 

meetings and education. 

2 



Southeast N D  Public Health Col laborative 

Our final year of th is project wi l l  consist of ordinance work throughout our reg ions, 

summarization of our objectives and accompl ishments, and identification of future goals. 

The total g rant amount for our six counties in this 3 year col laborative project is 

$225,740. 

1 hope this is helpfu l to you for understanding the value of networking through a 

col laborative such as ours and realizing the critical nature of fund ing  to make these 

projects successfu l .  

3 
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Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for 
Representative Weisz 

Apri l 1 2 , 20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO.�O 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 939 of the Senate Journal and 
page 1 086 of the House Journal and that Senate Bi l l  No.  2030 be amended as fo l lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "Act" i nsert "to create and enact a new section to chapter 23-35 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to tribal health d istricts; "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "reenact" insert "section 23-35-01 , subsection 2 of section 23-35-03, 
subsection 1 of section 23-35-04," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert "23-35-06, 23-35-07 , 23-35-08," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2,  after "to" insert "health d istricts , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 4,  replace "an  appropriation" with "a  report to  the  leg is lative management" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 5 ,  i n sert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A M E N D M ENT. Section 23-35-0 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is  amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

23-35-01 . Definitions. 

As used in th is chapter, unless the context otherwise req u i res: 

1 .  "Board of health" means a d istrict, county, eF city, or tribal board of health . 

2. "Department" means the state department of health. 

3. "Governing body" means, as applicable, a city commission, city counci l ,  
board of county commissioners ,  eF joint board of county commissioners, or 
tribal counci l .  

4 .  "Health d istrict" means an  entity formed u nder section 23-35-04 or 
23-35-05. 

5. "Joint board of county com missioners" means the boards of county 
com missioners of two or more counties acting together in jo int session .  

6 .  "Local health officer" means the health officer of a publ ic health un it. 

7. "Publ ic health department" means a city 6f county, or tribal health 
department formed under th is chapter. 

8 .  "Publ ic health un it" means the local organ ization formed under th is chapter 
to provide publ ic health services in  a city, county, or designated mult icounty 
or city-county area, or Ind ian reservat ion.  The term includes a city publ ic 
health department, county publ ic health department, tribal health 
department, and a health d istrict. 

S ECTION 2. A new section to chapter 23-35 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is  created and enacted as fol lows: 
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Tribal hea lth units. 

An Ind ian nation that occupies a reservation the external boundaries of which 
border more than four counties may form a health district or publ ic hea lth department 
as provided in this chapter. A tribal pu blic health  u n it and board ing public health un its 
shal l  col laborate regarding the provision of publ ic health services. If an  individual who 
is not an  enrol led member of an I ndian tribe of the I nd ian reservatio n  that forms a tribal 
publ ic health u n it is a party to a civil act ion i n  which the tribal public health unit is also a 
party. that ind ividual my bring the action in or move the action to tribal  court or district 
court. 

SECTION 3.  A M E N D M E NT. Subsection 2 of section 23-35-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

2 .  A city's ef ... county's. or tribe's govern ing body may establ ish a publ ic health 
u n it by creating and appointing a board of health, which in  the case of a 
city, may be com posed of the city's govern i ng body, or i n  the case of a 
tribe, may be composed of the tribal council  or govern ing body. A board of 
health must have at least five members. 

a .  I n  the case of a board of health created by a joint board of county 
commissioners, each cou nty in the health district m ust have at least 
one representative on the board ;  each county of over fifteen thousand 
popu lation must have an additional  representative for each fifteen 
thousand population or major fraction of that number; and in a health 
district of fewer than five counties , each county must have at least one 
representative on the district board of health , and the additional 
representatives selected to constitute the min imum five-member 
board must be equitably apportioned among the counties on a 
populat ion basis. 

b .  I n  the case of a joint city-county health d istrict com posed of only one 
county and having at least one city over fifteen thousand populat ion , 
each city having a populat ion over fifteen thousand must have a 
representative on the district board of health for each fifteen thousand 
population or major fraction of that number, and the remaining 
population of the county, exclusive of the populations of cities with 
more than fifteen thousand each, must have a representative on the 
district board of health for each fifteen thousand population or major 
fraction of that number, or at least one member if the remain ing 
popu lation is less than  fifteen thousand. 

SECTION 4. AM E N D M E NT. Subsection 1 of section 23-35-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 .  U po n  the adoption of a resolution ,  the govern ing body may form a single 
county, multicounty, eF-a city-county, or tribal hea lth district .  

SECTION 5. A M E N D M E NT. Section 23-35-06 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

23-35-06. Health d istricts - Dissol ution - Withd rawal .  

1 .  #Except for a tribal hea lth d istrict. if a health d istrict has been in operat ion 
for two years,  the d istrict may be dissolved as provided for under this 
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section. If a petition is fi led with the county auditor of each county of a 
health d istrict which is signed by qual ified electors of that county equal to 
ten percent or more of the votes cast i n  that county at the last general 
e lection, an election on the q uestion of dissolution m ust be presented to 
the qual ified electors in  each county in the district at the next election held 
i n  each county in  the district. If a majority of the votes cast on the question 
i n  a majority of the counties favor dissolution ,  the health district is  
d issolved on the second January first fol lowing the e lect ion.  If a majority of 
the votes cast on the question in a majority of the counties are against 
d issolution, no other election on this issue may be held for two years. 

2 .  I f  a health district has  been i n  operation for two years, any county may 
withdraw from the district as provided under this sect ion .  If a petition is fi led 
with the withdrawing county's auditor which is  signed by qual ified electors 
of the county equal to ten percent or more of the votes cast i n  that county 
at the last general e lect ion,  an e lection on the questio n  of withdrawal must 
be presented to the q ualified e lectors in the county at the next election i n  
the county. I f  a majority of the votes cast on the question favor withdrawing  
from the district, the  county is withd rawn from the district on the  second 
January first fol lowing the  election .  If a majority of  the  votes cast on the 
question are against withdrawal,  no other election o n  this issue may be 
held for two years. 

� A tribal health district may be d issolved by the tribal coun ci l  or governing 
body at any time. 

SECTION 6. AMENDM ENT. Section 23-35-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

23-35-07. Health d istrict fu nds. 

1 .  A-Except for a tribal health d istrict, a d istrict board of h ealth shal l  prepare a 
budget for the next fiscal year at the t ime at which a n d  i n  the manner in  
which a county _budget is adopted and shal l  submit th is  budget to the jo int 
board of county commissioners for approval .  The amount budgeted and 
approved must be prorated in  health d istricts composed of more than one 
county among the various counties in  the health distr ict accord ing to the 
taxable valuation of the respective counties in  the health d istrict. For the 
purpose of this section, "prorated" means that each member county's 
contribution must be based on an equal ized m il l  levy throughout the 
d istrict, except as otherwise perm itted under subsection 3 of section 
23-35-05. With in ten days after approval by the jo int board of county 
commissioners ,  the d istrict board of health shal l  certify the budget to the 
respective county auditors and the budget must be i ncluded in  the levies of 
the counties. The budget may not exceed the amount that can be raised by 
a levy of five mi l ls  o n  the taxable valuation ,  subject to public hearing in  
each county in  the health d istrict at  least fifteen days before an action 
taken by the joint board of county comm issioners .  Act ion taken by the jo int 
board of county com missioners must be based on the record , including 
comments received at the publ ic hearing .  A levy under this section is not 
subject to the l im itation on the county tax levy for general  and s pecial 
county purposes. The amount derived by a levy under this section must be 
placed in the health district fund .  The health d istrict fun d  must be deposited 
with and disbursed by the treasurer of the d istrict board of health. Each 
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county in a health d istrict quarterly shal l  remit and make settlements with 
the treasurer. Any funds remaining in the fund at the end of any fiscal year 
may be carried over to the next fiscal year. 

2.  +AeExcept for a triba l health district. the district board of health, or the 
president and secretary of the board when authorized or delegated by the 
board , shal l  aud it a l l  claims against the health d istrict fund.  The treasurer 
shal l  pay a l l  claims from the health d istrict fund .  The d istrict board of health 
shal l  approve or ratify a l l  claims at the board's quarterly meetings.  

S ECTION 7. AM E N DM E NT. Section 23-35-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is  amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

23-35-08. Boards of health - Powers and d uties. 

Except when in conflict with a local ordinance or a civil service rule with in a 
board of health's jurisdiction ,  or a tribal code, ordinance, or pol icy, each board of 
health: 

1 .  Shal l  keep records a nd make reports required by the department. 

2. Shal l  prepare and submit a public health un it budget. 

3.  Shal l  audit ,  al low, and certify for payment expenses i ncurred by a board of 
health i n  carrying i nto effect this chapter. 

4.  M ay accept and receive any contribution offered to a id  in  the work of the 
board of health or publ ic health unit. 

5. May make rules regard ing any nuisance,  source of fi l th ,  and any cause of 
s ickness which are necessary for public health and safety. 

6 .  May establ ish by  rule a schedule of reasonable fees that may be charged 
for services rendered .  Services may not be withheld d ue to an inabi l ity to 
pay any fees establ ished under this subsection.  If a tribal board of health 
establ ishes fees for services rendered, the fees may not exceed the 
h ighest corresponding fee of any of the public health u n its that border the 
tribal publ ic health u n it. 

7. May make rules in a health district or county public health department, as 
the case may be, and in the case of a city public health department may 
recommend to the city's governing body ordinances for the protection of 
publ ic health  and safety. 

8. May adopt confinement, decontamination ,  and sanitary measures in  
compl iance with chapter 23-07.6 which are necessary when an  infectious 
or  contag ious disease exists. 

9. M ay make and enforce an order in  a local matter if an  emergency exists. 

1 0 .  M a y  inqu ire i nto any nuisance, source of fi lth ,  o r  cause of sickness. 

1 1 .  Except i n  the case of an emergency, may conduct a search or seize 
materia l  located on private property to ascertain the condition of the 
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property as the cond ition relates to public health and safety as a uthorized 
by an administrative search warrant issued under chapter 29-29 . 1 .  

1 2 . May abate or remove any nuisance, source of fi lth, or cause of sickness 
when necessary to protect the publ ic health and safety. 

1 3. May supervise any matter relating to preservation of l ife and health  of 
individuals,  including the supervis ion of any water supply and sewage 
system. 

1 4. May isolate, k i l l ,  or remove any animal affected with a contagious or 
infectious disease if the an ima l  poses a material risk to h uman health and 
safety. 

1 5. Shal l  appoi nt a local health officer. 

1 6. May employ any person necessary to effectuate board rules and this 
chapter. 

1 7. If a public health un it is served by a part-time local h ealth officer, the board 
of health may appoint a n  executive d irector. An executive d i rector is 
subject to removal for cause by the board of health. The board of health 
may ass ign to the executive d i rector the duties of the local health officer, 
and the executive d irector shal l  perform these duties under the direction of 
the local health officer. 

1 8 . May contract with any person to provide the services necessary to carry 
out the purposes of the board of health . 

1 9. Shal l  designate the location of a local health officer's office and shal l  
furn ish the office with necessary equipment. 

20. May provide for personnel  the board of health considers necessary. 

2 1 . Shal l  set the salary of the local health officer, the executive d irector, and 
any assistant local health officer and shal l  set the com pensation of any 
other publ ic health un it personnel .  

22.  Shal l  pay for necessary travel of the local health officer, the local  health 
officer's assistants, and other personnel in the manner and to the extent 
determi ned by the board ."  

Page 4 ,  remove l i nes 30 and 31  

Page 5,  replace l i nes 1 through 3 with :  

"SECTION 1 2. STATE D E PARTMENT OF H EALTH REPORTS TO 
LEGISLATIVE MANAG E M E NT - TRI BAL P U BLIC H EALTH U N IT PI LOT PROJECT. 
During the 2013-14 i nterim,  the state department of health shal l  report semiannual ly to 
the legislative management on the status of the tribal public health un it pi lot project, 
includ ing services provided, resources avai lable, expenditures,  and the future 
susta inabi l ity of the pi lot project . "  

Ren u m ber according ly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Porter 

April 1 9, 201 3 

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2030 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 939 of the Senate Journal and 
page 1 086 of the House Journal and that Senate Bil l  No. 2030 be amended as follows: 

Page 4, l ine 3 1 ,  replace "$4 , 000,000" with "$700,000" 

Page 5, l ine 3, after the period insert "The department may not spend more than $250, 000 for 
each regional public health unit ."  

Renumber accordingly 
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